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ARCL Organics Limited

CHAIRMAN SPEECH- 2021

Dear Shareholders,

The year 2020-21 has been challenging for each one of us. The covid-19 pandemic has infected 
lives, livelihood, and business significantly. On top of that, we faced a huge impact of the Amphan 
cyclone in our factory and incurred heavy damages. Operational challenges became bigger and 
bigger due to lockdowns, restricted movements, and disrupted supplies during the first half of the 
year. With relentless efforts, our team restored the production in a very short time.

While the country was getting ready for full recovery, meanwhile 2nd wave disrupted the entire 
system of the whole country and the sword of the 3rd wave as predicted is hanging on everyone’s 
head.

With Never Say Die spirit, every member of ARCL kept the wheels of production moving and the supply chain 
uninterrupted. Your company is manufacturing some essential products and was able to keep the factory running during 
the lockdown period as a service to the nation and its people.

World over import business was very much disrupted, as a result of which containers were very much in short supply and 
transit period increased drastically. Thanks to the commitment and dedication of every member of ARCL, your company 
could maintain the supplies to its loyal customers in Africa and other parts of the world.

Inspite of facing the challenges and as a result of hard work, your company made a record profit in the year 2020-21. The 
turnover was increased by 23% and the profit was increased by 218% from last year.

Forward-looking statement, the world over chemical industry is going green by bringing in new technologies. Your 
Company has also signed for new technologies which will produce off-gas with hydrogen that can be used in our spray 
dryers replacing the fossil oil consumption. Consequently, we will have huge savings on the cost of oil and at the same 
time, our production capacity of formaldehyde will increase to One Lakh Tonnage per annum from the existing Forty 
thousand Tonnage per annum.

Your Company is in phenolic resin manufacturing for the last 50 years but were specialized in resolve phenolic resin 
which is used in the plywood industry only. Now we have put up an additional production line of Ten thousand Tonnage 
per annum of Novalac Phenolic Resin for serving the tire, rubber, automotive component, steel foundry, and refractory 
industries. As a result, the turnover of the Company will double itself and similarly profits.

The listing process at BSE and SEBI is being delayed due to the disruptions caused by the lockdowns.

Lastly, I would like to thank the shareholders, investors, lenders, suppliers, customers, board members, and other 
stakeholders for their deliberate and consistent support.

Best Wishes

 Suraj Ratan Mundhra

Managing Director
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th • The appointment may be terminated by either party by giving NOTICE is hereby given that the 29  ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
three months’ notice of such termination or by mutual consent.of the Members of ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED will be held on 

Friday, 30th July 2021 at 11:30 AM, through video 
• He will be counted in directors liable to retire by rotation for the conferencing/other audio-visual means facility to transact the 

compliance of section 152 of Companies Act 2013 by the following business: -
company.

ORDINARY BUSINESS
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any of the directors and the 
company secretary of the company be and are hereby severally 1. To receive, consider and adopt: 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as they 

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the may in their absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or 
stCompany for the financial year ended 31  March 2021 and desirable and settle any question, difficulty or doubt in this 

the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon; regard.”
and 

4. To approve the increase in remuneration of Mr, Mukesh 
b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Mundhra, wholetime director of the company

stCompany for the financial year ended 31  March 2021 and 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without the Report of the Auditors thereon. 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special resolution: 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mukesh  Mundhra, DIN: 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 00658602, who retires by rotation at this Annual General Meeting 
196,197, 198, 201 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
Companies Act 2013, and companies (Appointment and 

 SPECIAL BUSINESS Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (including 
rules, notifications, any statutory modifications, amendments or 

3. To approve the increase in remuneration of Mr. Rajesh re-enactments thereof for the time being in force and as may be 
Mundhra, wholetime director of the company enacted from time to time) read with schedule V of the said act, 

and any such other approval, permission may be required and To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
subject to the provisions of article of association of the company, modification(s), the following resolution as a Special resolution:
approvals of members be and is hereby accorded to the revision 
in the remuneration of Mr. Mukesh Mundhra (DIN: 00658602), “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 
Whole time director of the company on following terms and 196,197, 198, 201 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
conditions effective from 01.04.2021 for his remaining period of Companies Act 2013, and companies (Appointment and 
schedule:Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, (including 

rules, notifications, any statutory modifications, amendments or 
Salary & Perquisites:re-enactments thereof for the time being in force and as may be 

enacted from time to time) read with schedule V of the said act, 
1 Basic Salary:  Rs. 30,000/- per month 

and any such other approval, permission may be required and 
subject to the provisions of article of association of the company, 2 House Rent Allowance of Rs.  40,000/- per month
approvals of members be and is hereby accorded to the revision 
in the remuneration of Mr. Rajesh Mundhra (DIN:00658649), 3 All Other Allowances of Rs. 1,30,000/- per month 
Whole time director of the company on following terms and 
conditions effective from 01.04.2021 for his remining period of 4 Reimbursement of actual club expenses for furtherance of 
schedule: business.

Salary & Perquisites: 5 Car, telephone, mobile phone, laptop, PC shall be provided, and 
their expenses shall be borne by Company.

1 Basic Salary:  Rs. 30,000/- per month 

6 Other benefits like Gratuity, PF, Leave etc. as applicable to the 2 House Rent Allowance of Rs.  40,000/- per month
employees of the Company.

3 All Other Allowances of Rs. 1,30,000/- per month 
Other Terms and Conditions:

4 Reimbursement of actual club expenses for furtherance of 
• In case of No Profit or inadequate profit also the minimum salary business.

of Rs. 2,00,000 will be given to WTD according to provisions of 
5 Car, telephone, mobile phone, laptop, PC shall be provided, and Schedule V of the Act, 2013.

their expenses shall be borne by Company.
• The appointment may be terminated by either party by giving 

6 Other benefits like Gratuity, PF, Leave etc. as applicable to the three months’ notice of such termination or by mutual consent.
employees of the Company.

• He will be counted in directors liable to retire by rotation for the 
Other Terms and Conditions:

compliance of section 152 of Companies act 2013 by the 
company.• In case of No Profit or inadequate profit also the minimum salary 

of Rs. 2,00,000 will be given to WTD according to provisions of 
Schedule V of the Act, 2013.

NOTICE OF 29TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any of the directors and the company attached therewith) for FY 2020-21, are being sent only through 
secretary of the company be and are hereby severally authorized to email to all members on their registered email id with the 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as they may in their Company and no physical copy of the same would be 
absolute discretion deem necessary, proper or desirable and settle dispatched.
any question, difficulty or doubt in this regard.”

4. The Company has engaged the services of Link Intime India 
Private Limited (“LIIPL”) for providing facility for voting through 5. Approval of Related Party Transactions
remote e-voting, participation in the AGM through VC / OAVM 
facility and e-voting during the AGM. The procedure for “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 188(1) and 
participating in the meeting through VC / OAVM is explained other applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013, if any, read with 
below.companies (Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, including 

any statutory amendments or modifications or re-enactments 5. The registered office of the company shall be deemed to be the 
thereof, Related Party Transactions in the following nature, during place of meeting for the purpose of recording of the minutes of 
and for the period 2020-21 be and are hereby approved. the proceedings of this AGM.
  

6. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued 
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to 
attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this 
AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint 
authorised representatives to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM 
and participate there at and cast their votes through e-voting.

7. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through 
VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

8. Procedure for Registration of email ids and Bank Account details:

In case the shareholder’s email ID is already registered with the 
Company/ i t s  Reg is t ra r  &  Share  Trans fer  Agent  
“RTA”/Depositories, log in details for e-voting are being sent on                                                               By the order of the Board
the registered email address.

                                                                 For ARCL Organics Limited
In case the shareholder has not registered his/her/their email 
address with the Company/its RTA/Depositories the following 
instructions are to be followed:Place: Rampur, PS Maheshtala-700141                   Sonali Chaubey

(i) For shares held in physical mode:Date: 08.06.2021                                                Company Secretary

a) Advise any change in their address or bank mandates to the 
Company/Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent, Link 
Intime India Private Limited. The notification of change of 
address should be accompanied by the address proof, i.e., 
voter’s identity card, electric/telephone bill, driving licence or a 
copy of the passport or bank statement of the member. OR

NOTES:
b) Log into the website of our RTA, Link Intime India Private Ltd., 

1. An Explanatory Statement setting out the material facts at www.linkintime.co.in under Investor Services > Email/Bank 
concerning each item of Special Businesses to be transacted at detail Registration. Fill in the details and upload the required 
the General Meeting pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies documents and submit.
Act, 2013, is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice. 

ii) For Shares held in Demat mode:
2. In view of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is 

The shareholder may please contact the Depository Participant to be followed and pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated 
(“DP”) and register the email address and bank account details in April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
the demat account as per the process followed and advised by followed by Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, and 
the DP.Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars”) and all other 9. Any member desirous of receiving any information of Financial 
relevant circulars issued from time to time. The 29th AGM of the Statements or operations of the Company is requested to 
Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM facility, which forward his/her queries through email, at least 10 working days 
does not require physical presence of Members at a common prior to AGM, so that required information can be made available 
venue. The deemed venue for the 29th AGM shall be the at the AGM.
Corporate Office of the Company situated at Rampur, P.S. 

10. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Maheshtala, Kolkata – 700141. Hence, Members can attend and 
Company will remain closed from July 24, 2021 to July 30, 2021 participate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only. The detailed 
(both days inclusive).procedure for participating in the Meeting through VC/OAVM is 

annexed herewith.
11. To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Members are requested to 

register their email addresses with the Registrar and Share 3. Notice of 29th AGM and financial statements (including Board’s 
Transfer Agents of  the Company to or mai l  at  report, Auditor’s report or other documents required to be 

Related Party              Transactions 

All the existing Directors 
and KMP’s along with the 
directors appointed in 
AGM, whol ly  owned 
subsidiaries and other 
associate companies.

Sale, purchase or supply of any 
goods or mater ials Sel l ing, 
purchasing disposing, or buying of 
property of any kind Leasing of 
property of any kind Availing or 
rende r i ng  o f  any  se rv i ces  
Appointment of any agent for 
purchase or sale of goods, 
materials, services, or property 
Underwriting the subscription of any 
securities or derivatives thereof, of 
the company.
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kolkata@linkintime.co.in or with the Depositories for receiving all Pursuant to section 197 read with schedule V of the companies 
communication, including Annual Report, Notices and act 2013, the revised remuneration as approved by the board is 
Documents through e-mail instead of physical copy. required to be approved by the members at their meeting.

12. Non-resident Indian Members are requested to inform It is hereby confirmed that company has not committed any 
Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime default in respect of any debt or interest payable in the preceding 
India Private Limited, immediately of a) Change of their financial and the current year.
residential status on return to India for permanent settlement. b) 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the companies act 2013 
Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with 

and the relevant rules made thereunder, consent of the members 
Complete name, branch, account type, account number and 

is being sought by way of a special resolution. 
address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier.

The board of director recommend passing of special resolution.
13 Mr. Nand Kishore Sharma, Practicing Company Secretary in 

practice, has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing Brief profile of Mr. Rajesh Mundhra is given below for 
facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting reference of the member:
and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

He has more than 25 years of experience in Chemical industries.The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general 
meeting, will first count the vote cast at the meeting & their after He is responsible for production, product development, 
unblock the vote cast through remote e-voting in the present of at maintenance and factory administration.
list two witness not in the employee of the company and shall 

He is Interested in making optimum utilization of available make not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a 
resources to maximum extent.consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour 

or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him He is part of Indian Plywood Association and is postgraduate 
in writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result from University of Hartford.
of the voting forthwith. The Results declared along with the report 

The Board recommends the resolution for the approval of the of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company 
members.and on the website of Insta Vote of LIIPL immediately after the 

declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by ITEM NO. 4-
him in writing. 

Mr. Mukesh Mundhra was appointed for a period of 5 years w.e.f 
The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and 20th August 2018 to 20th August 2022 and the same was 
their shareholding, Register of Contracts or Arrangements in subsequently approved by the members at the AGM held on 
which Directors are interested, Relevant documents referred to 26.09.2018.
in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall 

Further considering the contribution of Mr. Mukesh Mundhra and be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company 
the progress made by the company under his leadership and during normal business hours (11.00 am to 1.00 pm) on all 
guidance, the board at its meeting dated 08.06.2021 approved working days except Saturdays, up to and including the date of 
the revision in the remuneration on terms and conditions the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
enumerated in the resolution.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is 
Pursuant to section 197 read with schedule V of the companies not annexed in this Notice.
act 2013, the revised remuneration as approved by the board is 

The instructions and guidelines for joining meeting the VC OAVM required to be approved by the members at their meeting.
facility and voting is separately annexed with the notice of AGM.

It is hereby confirmed that company has not committed any 
The remote e-voting period commences at 9:00 a.m. (IST) on default in respect of any debt or interest payable in the preceding 
Tuesday, July 27, 2021, and ends at 5:00 p.m. (IST) on Thursday, financial and the current year.
July 29, 2021. The e-voting module shall be disabled for voting 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the companies act 2013 thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the 
and the relevant rules made thereunder, consent of the members shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed to change it 
is being sought by way of a special resolution. subsequently.

The board of director recommend passing of special resolution.

Brief profile of Mr. Mukesh Mundhra is given below for EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF ITEMS OF 
reference of the member: SPECIAL BUSINESS:

He has 19 years of experience in the Petrol chemical, Oil & Gas PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
and Shipping Business and he is responsible for Business 

ITEM NO. 3- development, expansion and new projects. He is part of Indian 
Chemical Manufacturer Association and Indian Port Association Mr. Rajesh Mundhra was appointed for a period of 5 years w.e.f 
and is postgraduate from University of California.20th August 2018 to 20th August 2022 and the same was 

subsequently approved by the members at the AGM held on ITEM NO. 5-
26.09.2018.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 
Further considering the contribution of Mr. Rajesh Mundhra and 2013 (“the Act”), read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of 
the progress made by the company under his leadership and Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 the Company is required to 
guidance, the board at its meeting dated 08.06.2021 approved obtain consent of the Board and prior approval of the members by 
the revision in the remuneration on terms and conditions resolution for certain Related Party Transactions which exceed 
enumerated in the resolution.
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such sum as is specified in the rules. The aforesaid provisions company every year is obtaining approval of shareholders for the 
are not applicable in respect transactions entered into by the related party transactions to ensure that all the related party 
Company in the ordinary course of business and on an arm’s transactions entered by the company at any given point of time 
length basis. are according to the prior approval of the shareholders.

However, as per the policy adopted by the company on related 
party transactions and as a measure of transparency, the 

Sl No Name (s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms Date of Amount
the related party &  contracts/ alient terms of the contracts approval by paid as 
nature of arrangements/ or arrangements the Board advances, 
relationship transaction    or transaction  if any

including the 
value, if any   

I) Classic Furniture and Purchase of Till the end Aggregate amount 08.06.2021 Rs.69,45,698
Furnishings Private Limited goods & services of Financial not exceeding

Year Rs.100 lakhs  

In view the above, it is proposed to seek approval of the members of the Company through Special Resolution 

By the order of the Board

For ARCL Organics Limited

Place: Rampur, PS-Maheshtala, Kol-700141 Sonali Chaubey

Date: 08/06/21 Company Secretary
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Process and manner for attending the General Meeting through your vote”
InstaMeet: 2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP 
1. Open the internet browser and launch the URL: (received on the registered mobile number/ registered email Id) 

https://instameet.linkintime.co.in received during registration for InstaMEET and click on 'Submit'. 
3. After successful login, you will see “Resolution Description” and ▶ Select the “Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your 

against the same the option “Favour/ Against” for voting. following details: - 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. A. Demat Account No. or Folio No:Enter your 16 digitDemat 

“Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares (which Account No. or Folio No
represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under • Shareholders/ members holding shares in CDSL demat 
‘Favour/Against'.account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as • Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat 
desired and you have decided to vote, click on “Save”. A account shall provide 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your Client ID
vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on “Back” • Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form 
and accordingly modify your vote. shall provide Folio Number registered with the Company 

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number 
allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently.(PAN) (Members who have not updated their PAN with the 
Note: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Depository Participant (DP)/ 
General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and have not casted Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if 
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are applicable. 
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.
through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ 

D. Email ID: Enter your email id, as recorded with your 
Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the 

DP/Company. 
General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the 

▶Click “Go to Meeting” (You are now registered for InstaMeet and Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will 
your attendance is marked for the meeting). not be eligible to vote again during the meeting. 
Please read the instructions carefully and participate in the Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting 
meeting. You may also call upon the InstaMeet Support Desk for through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband for 
any support on the dedicated number provided to you in the better experience.
instruction/ InstaMEET website. Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good 

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to avoid any 
General Meeting through InstaMeet: disturbance during the meeting.
1. Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from 

register their request 3 days in advance with the company on the Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops connecting via 
specific email id created for the general meeting. Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to 

2. Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis fluctuation in their network.  It is therefore recommended to use 
depending upon the provision made by the client. stable Wi-FI or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 

3. Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they glitches.
mark attendance for the meeting. In case shareholders/ members have any queries regarding 

4. Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active l o g i n /  e - v o t i n g ,  t h e y  m a y  s e n d  a n  e m a i l  t o  
chat-board during the meeting. instameet@linkintime.co.inor contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

5. Please remember speaking serial number and start your InstaMeet Support Desk
conversation with panellist by switching on video mode and Link Intime India Private Limited
audio of your device. Annexure 
Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of Guidelines to attend the AGM proceedings of Link Intime India 
the meeting/ management will announce the name and serial Pvt. Ltd.: InstaMEET
number for speaking. For a smooth experience of viewing the AGM proceedings of Link 
Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Intime India Pvt. Ltd. InstaMEET, shareholders/ members who are 
General Meeting through InstaMeet: registered as speakers for the event are requested to download and 
Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ install the Webex application in advance by following the instructions 
moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members who as under:
have not exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can a) Please download and install the Webex  application by clicking 
cast the vote as under: on the link https://www.webex.com/downloads.html/

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast 
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Remote e-Voting Instructions for shareholders post change 
in the Login mechanism for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, pursuant to SEBI circular dated 
December 9, 2020:
Pursuant to SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting 
facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode can vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants 
only post 9th June, 2021.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and 
email Id in their demat accounts to access e-Voting facility.
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode/ physical mode is given below:

Login Method

• If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS 
facility, please visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL:
 https://eservices.nsdl.comeither on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 
e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial 
Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID and Password. 

• After successful authentication, you will be able to 
see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-
Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be 
able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider name and you 
will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider 
website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting.

• If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, 
o p t i o n  t o  r e g i s t e r  i s  a v a i l a b l e  a t  
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register 
Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDir
ectReg.jsp

• Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click 
on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your 
sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 
Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be redirected to e-
Voting service provider website for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Type of 
shareholders
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL Individual 

Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
& login 
through their 
depository 
participants

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Physical 
mode& 
evoting 
service 
Provider is 
LINKINTIME.

www.cdslindia.com and click on New System 
Myeasi.

• After successful login of Easi / Easiest the user will 
be also able to see the E Voting Menu. The Menu 
will have links of e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL, KARVY, LINKINTIME, CDSL. Click on e-
Voting service provider name to cast your vote.

• If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option 
t o  r e g i s t e r  i s  a v a i l a b l e  a t  h t t p s : / /  
web.cdslindia.com/myeasi./Registration/Easi 
Registration

• Alternatively, the user can directly access e-
Voting page by providing demat Account Number 
and PAN No. from a link in  www.cdslindia.com 
home page. The system will authenticate the user 
by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be provided links for the 
respective ESP where the E Voting is in progress.

• You can also login using the login credentials of 
your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-
Voting facility.  

• Once login, you will be able to see e-Voting option. 
Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be 
redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see 
e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting.

1. Open the internet browser and launch the 
URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

▶ Click on “Sign Up” under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ 
tab and register with your following details: - 

A. User ID: Shareholders/ members holding 
shares in physical form shall provide Event No 
+ Folio Number registered with the Company.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) (Members who have not 
updated their PAN with the Depository 
Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the 
sequence number provided to you, if 
applicable. 

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date 
of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with your 
DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format) 

D. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank 
Account Number (last four digits), as recorded 
with your DP/Company. 

• Shareholders/ members holding shares in 
physical form but have not recorded ‘C’ and ‘D’, 
shall provide their Folio number in ‘D’ above

▶ Set the password of your choice (The 
password should contain minimum 8 
characters, at least one special Character 
(@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one 
alphabet and at least one capital letter). 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with CDSL

• Existing user of who have opted for Easi / Easiest, 
they can login through their user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting 
page without any further authentication. The URL 
for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
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▶  Click “confirm” (Your password is now 
generated).

2. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab. 
3. Enter your User ID, Password and Image 

Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on 
‘Submit’. 

4. After successful login, you will be able to see 
the notification for e-voting. Select ‘View’ icon. 

5. E-voting page will appear. 
6. Refer the Resolution description and cast your 

vote by selecting your desired option ‘Favour / 
Against’ (If you wish to view the entire 
Resolution details, click on the ‘View 
Resolution’ file link). 

7. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / 
Against, click on ‘Submit’. A confirmation box 
will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your 
vote, click on ‘Yes’, else to change your vote, 
click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote. 

Institutional shareholders:
Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) 

and Custodians are required to log on the e-voting system of 
LIIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.inand register 
themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body’. They 
are also required to upload a scanned certified true copy of the 
board resolution /authority letter/power of attorney etc. together 
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised 
representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / 
Corporate Body’ login for the Scrutinizer to verify the same. 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode &evoting 
service Provider is LINKINTIME,have forgotten the password:

o Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER’ tab and further Click 
‘forgot password?’ 

o Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification 
(CAPTCHA) Code and Click on ‘Submit’. 

•  In case shareholders/ members is having valid email address, 
Password will be sent to his / her registered e-mail address. 

• Shareholders/ members can set the password of his/her choice 
by providing the information about the particulars of the Security 
Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number 
(last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. 

• The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least 
one special character (@!#$&*), at least one numeral, at least 
one alphabet and at least one capital letter. 
Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with 
NSDL/ CDSL have forgotten the password:

• Shareholders/ members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ 
Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned depository/ 
depository participants website.

Ø It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any 
other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confidential. 

Ø For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the 
details can be used only for voting on the resolutions contained 
in this Notice.

Ø During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any 
number of time till they have voted on the resolution(s) for a 
particular “Event”.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode:

In case shareholders/ members holding securities in demat mode 
haveany technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. 
NSDL/ CDSL, they may contact the respective helpdesk given 
below:

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in
holding securities in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by
demat mode with NSDL sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.co.inor call at toll free no.: 
1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in
holding securities in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by
demat mode with CDSL sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022-23058738 or 22-
23058542-43. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
physical mode/ Institutional shareholders&evoting service 
Provider is LINKINTIME.
In case shareholders/ members holding securities in physical mode/ 
Institutional shareholders have any queries regarding e-voting, they 
may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (‘FAQs’) and InstaVote e-
Voting manual available at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in, under 
Help section or send an email to enotices@linkintime.co.inor contact 
on: - Tel: 022 –4918 6000.
InstaVote Support Desk
Link Intime India Private Limited
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To

The Members,
thYour Directors take pleasure in presenting the 29  Annual Report on the operations of your Company together with the audited accounts for the 

financial year ended 31st March 2021.

Standalone Consolidated

Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21

Total Income 8808.53 7190.01 8908.49

Profit before Deprecation, Finance Cost, Tax and Exceptional items 1370.81 783.79 1462.00

Depreciation and amortization expenses 148.55 142.53 148.54

Finance cost 191.97 303.57 190.86

Exceptional Items NIL NIL NIL

Profit before Tax 1030.29 337.68 1122.59

Less: Tax expenses 299.26 80.54 319.02

Profit for the year 731.03 257.14 803.56

Other comprehensive income for the year -20.78 -32.81 -20.78

Total comprehensive income for the year 710.24 224.34 782.77

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

State of Company affairs To achieve sustainable growth, our company makes an effort to 
detect, at an early stage, various risks that may hinder the 

During the year under review, the Company run the plant 
achievement of its business objectives and takes proper measures. 

continuously despite the Company remaining under pressure with 
We focus on building and expanding a system relating to risk 

sluggish market conditions coupled with high volatility in the prices of 
management so that we can promptly and properly address risks 

key raw materials. Improved production of formaldehyde and Aqua 
when they emerge.

division have helped the Company withstand the pressures of the 
Details of Policy developed and implemented by the company market.
on its Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives

The resin business continues to perform well, and our focus is on 
As the profit of the company is more than 5 crore this year so now the 

product development and further penetration in the market. 
company has fallen into compulsory provisions of CSR rules which 

Considering the significant improvement in capacity utilization, we 
mandates the formation of committee and contribution and the same 

are contemplating to expand our manufacture of Resins.
will be shown in the books of FY 21-22. The company also undertakes 

Credit Ratings to make a policy on CSR and make it available on its website.

Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made under Our rating committee has reviewed the following ratings:
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013  

Facilities    Amount     Current rating   Previous rating   Rating action
The company has not given any loan under this section except 

           in crore
making investments in, giving loans and guarantees to and providing 
securities in connection with loans to its wholly owned subsidiaries 
from time to time, in compliance with the applicable provisions of the 
Act.

Public Deposits

As on today, we do not have any public deposit in terms of chapter V 
of the companies act 2013.

Subsidiaries, Joint Venture and Associate company

As on 31st March 2021, your Company has the following 7 wholly 
owned subsidiary companies:

1. Yocnex Chemicals Private Limited

2. Suksess Chemicals Private LimitedDividend
3. Nocnex Chemicals Private LimitedYour directors do not recommend payment of dividend on equity 
4. Ocilim Advisory Services Private Limitedshares.
5. Wide Range Merchants Private LimitedTransfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Education and 
6. Allied Maritime & Infra Engineering Private LimitedProtection Fund
7. ARCL Petrochemicals LimitedThe provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not 

apply as there was no dividend declared and paid last year. In Compliance with IND AS-110, your Company has prepared its 
consolidated financial statements which forms part of its Annual Share Capital
Report. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of Companies The paid-up capital of the company as on 31st March 2021was INR 8 
Act, 2013, the salient features of the subsidiary Company in the Crore. During the year under review the Company has not altered its 
prescribed form AOC-1 is a part of the consolidated financial share capital, consequently there is no change in the capital structure 
statements.since previous year.
Your Company does not have any associates, holding or joint Statement concerning development and implementation of Risk 
ventures as on 31st March 2021.Management Policy of the Company

IVR BBB-/
Stable Outlook 
(IVR Triple B 
Minus with
 stable outlook)

IVR A3-/ (IVR
A Three)

 Long
 term       
 bank
 facilities

 Short term       
 bank
 facilities

Total

6.00

10.25

16.25 (Rupee Sixteen Crore Twenty Five Lakh Only)

IVR BB+/ 
stable outlook 
(IVR Double 
B plus with 
stable outlook)

IVR A4+(IVR A 
Four Plus)

Revised

Revised

Figure in Lakhs
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Human Resources Listing of Equity shares 

The Company's human resource development is founded on a Due to the ongoing pandemic situation the listing process is being 
strong set of values. The policies seek to instil spirit of trust, delayed but the company is working on it and is in continuous 
transparency and dignity among all employees. The Company discussion with Bombay Stock exchange. The application is under 
continues to provide ongoing internal and external training to its scrutiny at present.
employees at different levels. Auditor and Auditor’s Report
Industrial relations with the employees and workers across all M/s JSUS & Associates (Firm Registration number-329784E), 
locations of the Company continued to be cordial during the year. Chartered accountants, were appointed as statutory auditors for a 

thOpportunities and Threats period of 5 years from the conclusion of 27  Annual general meeting 
stto 31  Annual general meeting of the company.There are various opportunities like the products innovation, 

growing demand of Indian chemical sector.The Company’s The observations of Auditors in their report “read with notes to the 
continuous focus on process improvement enhances its accounts” are self-explanatory and do not call for any further 
efficiencies. This has led to improved product yield and a better explanation.
through put. Director and Key Managerial Personnel
The uncertainty of evolution of COVID and its continuous impact has In accordance with provisions of section 152 of the act read with 
led to a severe setback for economy globally and in India which may rules made thereunder, Mr. Mukesh Mundhra is liable to retire by 
be a threat and the fluctuations in prices could affect the margins. th

rotation at the 29  AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-
Internal Financial Control appointment.

The Company has laid down guidelines, which enable Your company intrinsically believe in philosophy of corporate 
implementation of appropriate internal financial controls. These governance and are committed to comply with the rules of 
include controls in the nature of manual or automated IT applications composition of Board. 
including the ERP applications wherein the transactions are 

The Company has received declarations from all independent 
approved and recorded. These systems are designed keeping in 

directors that they meet the criteria of independence and none of the 
view the nature of activities carried out at each location and various 

director is disqualified for being appointed as director.
business operations.

As on 31st March 2021, your Company has following Key 
The evaluations of these internal financial controls were done by the 

Managerial Personnel as per the rule of Companies act 2013-
Statutory Auditors.

Mr. Suraj Ratan Mundhra, Managing Director
Related Party Transactions

Mr. Rajesh Mundhra, Whole Time Director
All contracts/arrangements/transactions entered by the company 

Mr. Mukesh Mundhra, Whole Time Directorduring the financial year with related parties were in ordinary course 
of business and on arm’s length basis. None of the transactions Mr. Ajay Kumar Mimani, Executive Director
were in conflict with company interest. The company had not 

Mr. Navneet Bagri, Chief Financial Officer
entered into any material transactions with related parties.

Ms. Sonali Chaubey, Company Secretary
Change in nature of business

Corporate Governance
There have been no changes in nature of business of the company. 

Your Company upholds the standard of governance and a report on The company changed its registered office from 13 Camac Street to 
corporate governance is a part of Directors report.Rampur, PS Maheshtala, Kolkata -700141 in the month of January 

2021 and also filed the necessary form in ROC. A report on Corporate Governance is annexed as "Annexure 2.

Annual Return Obligation of Company under sexual harassment of women at 
workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) act, 2013As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 

and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Your Company ensures that every woman employee is treated with 
Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 9 is annexed as dignity and equality. The company has a committee which looks 
Annexure 1. after this and safety of woman employees.

Taxes and Duties Information as required under section 134(3)(m) of the 
companies act 2013 read with Rule 8(3) of Companies Your Company has contributed Rs. 9,54,14,967/- to the Central and 
(Accounts) rules, 2014):State Exchequer by way of Taxes and duties.

Conservation of EnergyRepayment of Debts

a. Energy Conservation Measures Taken: During the year we Your Company has repaid the total debts of Rs. 2,74,95,820/- during 
negotiated for new technologies for a drastic reduction of oil the year.
consumption in dryer plus power consumption and better 

Future Prospects
utilization of steam and off-gases. We are going to implement 

The outlook for both the near and long-term future remains them in the coming year which is going to help a lot in energy 
optimistic for the Company. Even amidst the current market saving and the company will get immense benefit and 
sentiments, we are hopeful of all the potential that lies untapped in profitability from such measures taken.
the industry. It instils a sense of confidence in us about the future that 

b. Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per Unit of 
lies ahead. As a result, the impact of the current temporary 

Production:
slowdown will not affect our future goals.
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• Power & Fuel Consumption* c) The directors to the best of their knowledge & ability have taken 
proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate I. Electricity Rs.
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act 

Purchased Units (KWH in lacs) 48.8
for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing 

                Total Amount (Rs. In Lacs) 390 and detecting fraud and other irregularities.
                 Monthly average (Rs. In Lacs) 32.5 d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going 
                 Rate (Rs/KWH) 8 concern basis; and

II. Fuel Consumption e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the company and that such internal financial controls LDO& FOConsumption (in KL) 1367.9
are adequate and were operating effectively.

                Total Amount (Rs. In Lacs) 478
f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance 

                Monthly average (Rs.Lacs)   39.83
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 

                Rate (Rs/Litre) 34.94 were adequate and operating effectively.
Technology Absorption: Industrial relations
Research and Development (R & D): The Industrial relations in the Company continue to be very cordial 
Expenditure on R & D: and stable. Your directors would like to place on record their 

appreciation of the dedication and commitment of all employees of No.          Particulars 2020-21(Rs.)
your companyinspite of the pandemic situation.

I.    Capital Expenses 148211
Appreciation and Acknowledgements

II.    Revenue Expenses 988363
The Directors thank the Company’s customers, vendors, dealers, 

III.    Total 988363
investors and associates for their continues support during the year. 

IV.  Total R & D Expenditure as a % of Turnover 0.11 They also appreciate the contribution made by the employees at all 
levels.

Technology Absorption, Adaptation, and Innovation:
 

1. The efforts made towards technology absorption: 
For and on behalf of the Board

Lots of efforts has been made in absorbing new technologies which 
has already made good success at laboratory and pilot scale and are 

 in the process of commercialisation the benefit of which will be 
Suraj Ratan Mundhraavailable in the coming years.

Place: Kolkata                                Chairman and Managing Director2. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost 
Date: 08.06.2021                                                        DIN: 00681223 reduction: In some of the processes we have made great 

improvement and are at trial stage, the commercial benefit of which 
                                                                                   

will be available shortly.

3. Details of imported technology: However, we have gone for 
import substitution, one of our product mould inhibitors which has 
been developed by our R & D is being used commercially by a leading 
dairy firm for last 6 months.

Government recognition of our R & D

Company had already got recognition by Government of India 
approving our in-house laboratory as DSIR certified and this will give 
us an opportunity to get such fund and do real great R&D, helping 
world and society with innovations. We are pretty sure under the 
leadership of our talented R& D chief, ARCL will achieve lot of 
recognition & do real innovative research benefiting the industry & 
society.

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo:

a) Expenditure in Foreign Currency - Rs. 5,78,598/-

b) Earnings in Foreign Currency- Rs. 31,00,28,255/-

Director’s Responsibility Statement

Your directors, in terms of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 
2013, state that:

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 
accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures.

b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and 
of the profit/loss of the company for that period.
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31.3.2021
[Pursuant to section 92(3)of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Annexure – 1

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

CIN U24121WB1992PLC056562

Registration Date 09/08/1992

Name of the Company ARCL Organics Limited

Category/Sub-category of the Company Public Limited Company, Non-Government company

Address of the Registered office & contact details Rampur, PS Maheshtala, Kolkata-700141, Contact-033-22832865

Whether listed company Unlisted

Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar & Linkintime India Pvt. Ltd., C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, 

Transfer Agent, if any Vikhroli (West) Mumbai, Maharashtra-400083, Kolkata address- 59 C, 

Chowringhee Road,3rd Floor, Kolkata – 700020, 

Tel: 033 - 2289 0540, Telefax: 033 - 2289 0539

II.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. No. Name and Description of NIC Code of %  to total turnover

main products/services the Product/service  of the company

1 FORMALDEHYDE AND RESINS 2011 100

III.     PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES-7 Wholly Owned Subsidiaries

Sl. Name and address of CIN Holding/ Subsidiary/ (%) of shares held

No. the Company Associate

1. ARCL Petrochemicals Limited

C2-54/127, Budge Budge Trunk Road, U24110WB2008PLC125850 SubsidiaryCompany 99.99%

Maheshtala Kolkata-700141

2. Allied Maritime & Infra Engineering Private Limited

C2-54/127, Budge Budge Trunk Road, U74210WB2001PTC093865 Subsidiary Company 99.99%

Maheshtala Kolkata-700141

3. Wide Range Merchants Private Limited

C2-54/127, Budge Budge Trunk Road, U51909WB1995PTC074492 Subsidiary Company 99.99%

Maheshtala Kolkata-700141

4. Ocilim Advisory Services Private Limited

C2-54/127,Budge Budge Trunk U01122WB2007PTC116504 Subsidiary Company 99.99%

Maheshtala Kolkata-700141

5. Nocnex Chemicals Private Limited

C2-54/127, Budge Budge Trunk Road, U51909WB2019PTC229634 Subsidiary Company 99.99%

Maheshtala Kolkata-700141

6. Suksess Chemicals Private Limited

C2-54/127, Budge Budge Trunk Road, U51909WB2019PTC229742 Subsidiary Company 99.99%

Maheshtala Kolkata-700141

7. Yocnex Chemicals Private Limited

C2-54/127, Budge Budge Trunk Road, U51909WB2019PTC229931 Subsidiary Company 99.99%

Maheshtala Kolkata-700141
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IV.    SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 

Category of Shareholding at the Shareholding at the % Change

Shareholders beginning of the year - 2020 end of the year - 2021 during

   the year

 Demat Physical Total % Demat Physical Total %  

Shareholding of Promoter and 
Promoter Group          

Indian          

Individuals / Hindu Undivided Family 3263990 912834** 4176824 52.21 3263990 912834** 4176824 52.21 '0.0000

Central Government / State Government(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 '0.0000

Financial Institutions / Banks 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 '0.0000

Bodies Corporate 1273380 87166** 1360546 17.01 1273380 87166** 1360546 17.01 '0.0000

Sub Total (A)(1) 4537370 1000000 5537370 69.21 4537370 1000000 5537370 69.21 '0.0000

Foreign

Individuals (Non-Resident Individuals / 

Foreign Individuals) 0 0 0 0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Government 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Institutions 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Any Other (Specify)

Sub Total (A)(2) 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Total Shareholding of Promoter and 

Promoter Group(A)=(A)(1) + (A)(2) 4537370 1000000 5537370 69.21 4537370 1000000 5537370 69.21 '0.0000

Public Shareholding

Institutions

Mutual Funds / UTI 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Alternate Investment Funds 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Foreign Venture Capital Investors 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Foreign Portfolio Investor 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

*Pending for transfer.

X Financial Institutions / Banks 59950 0 59950 '0.7494 59950 0 59950 '0.7494 '0.0000

Insurance Companies 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Provident Funds/ Pension Funds 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Any Other (Specify)

Sub Total (B)(1) 59950 0 59950 '0.7494 59950 0 59950 '0.7494 '0.0000

Central Government/ State 

Government(s)/ President of India

Sub Total (B)(2) 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Non-Institutions

Individuals
Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital upto Rs. 1 lakh 6150 721920 728070 '9.1009 6150 721920 728070 '9.1009 ''0.0000

Individual shareholders holding nominal 
share capital in excess of Rs. 1 lakh 55450 144750 200200 '2.5025 55450 144750 200200 '2.5025 '0.0000

NBFCs registered with RBI 8400 0 8400 '0.1050 8400 0 8400 '0.1050 '0.1050

Employee Trusts 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Overseas Depositories (holding Drs) 
(balancing figure) 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Any Other (Specify)

SBICAP TRUSTEE 1000000 0 1000000 12.50 1000000 0 1000000 12.50 '0.0000

Bodies Corporate 0 466010 466010 '5.8251 0 466010 466010 '5.8251 '0.0000

Total Public Shareholding(B)1+2+3 129950 1332680 1462630 18.28 129950 1332680 1462630 18.28 0

Total (A)+(B) 5667320 2332680 8000000 100 5667320 2332680 8000000 100 0

Non-Promoter - Non-Public 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Custodian/DR Holder 0 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Employee Benefit Trust 0 00 0 '0.0000 0 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

Total (A)+(B)+(C) 5667320 2332680 8000000 '100.00 5667320 2332680 8000000 '100.00 '0.0000

**Pending transfer 
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoter

Sr No Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the

beginning of the year - 2020 end of the year - 2021  

 Shares % %of Shares Shares % %of Shares % change in
Pledged Pledged shareholding

Shares Shares

1 ARC Holdings Limited 1223380 '15.2922 '0.0000 1223380 '15.2922 '0.0000 '0.0000

2 Sushila Devi Mundhra 1031175 '12.889 '0.0000 1031175 '12.889 '0.0000 '0.0000

3 Suraj Ratan Mundhra 791627 9.8953 0.0000 791627 9.8953 0.0000 '0.0000

4 Mukesh Mundhra 700759 8.7594 0.0000 700759 8.7594 0.0000 '0.0000

5 Suraj Ratan Mundhra HUF 670005 8.3750 ‘0.0000 670005 8.3750 ‘0.0000 '0.0000

6 Ajay Kumar Mimani 37040 0.463 '0.0000 37040 0.463 '0.0000 '0.0000

7 Vijay Kumar Mimani 0 0 '0.0000 0 0 '0.0000 '0.0000

8 Rajesh Mundhra 345840 '4.3230 '0.0000 345840 '4.3230 '0.0000 '0.0000

9 Vasundhara Mundhra 308047 3.8505 '0.0000 308047 3.8505 '0.0000 '0.0000

10 Kapila Mundhra 292331 '3.6541 '0.0000 292331 '3.6541 '0.0000 '0.0000

 11 Super Polychem Pvt. Ltd. 0 0 0 0 0 0 '0.0000

 12 PBC Carriers Private Ltd. 137166 1.7146 '0.0000 137166 1.7146 '0.0000 '0.0000

 Total 5537370 '69.21 '0.0000 5537370 '69.21 '0.0000 '0.0000

(iii) Changes in Shareholding of Promoters: NO change except the change by virtue of SEBI’s order as given below-

      Pursuant to order of SEBI dated 4th August 2017, Company has opened an escrow account in which 10 lakh shares has been transferred 
which is hold by an independent trust namely SBICAP Trustee company Limited with whom ARCL has entered into an agreement for 
complying with the order of SEBI

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER SHARES  DATE OF TRANSFER

AJAY KUMAR MIMANI 417680 31.10.2019

VIJAY KUMAR MIMANI 386120 31.10.2019

SUPER POLYCHEM P LTD 196200 31.10.2019

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

Sr No. Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding at
                beginning of the year - 2020  the end of the year - 2021

 Name & Type of Transaction SHARES % SHARES % 

1 STRESSED ASSETS STABILIZATION FUND 249600 3.1200 249600 3.1200

2 PREM R MARDIA 60750 0.7594 60750 0.7594

3 UNIT TRUST OF INDIA 59950 0.7494 59950 0.7494

4 INDIAN BANK A/C INDIAN BANK MUTUAL FUND 46750 0.5844 46750 0.5844

5 3A CAPITAL SERVICES LTD. 37750 0.4719 37750 0.4719

6 A3 CAPITAL SERVICES (INDIA) LTD. 37500 0.4688 37500 0.4688

7 MORGAN STANLEY ASSET MANAGEMENT INC 32050 0.4006 32050 0.4006

8 ADVANCED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES INC 31250 0.3906 1250 0.3906

9 UNITED INDIA INSURANCE CO.LIMITED 30400 0.3800 30400 0.3800

10 DAULAT LAXMLAL CHANDRILIYA 25000 0.3125 25000 0.3125

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sl. No. Particulars Shareholding at the beginning Cumulative Shareholding 
of the year - 2020 during the year

Shareholding of each Directors and No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares % of total shares
each Key Managerial Personnel

1 Mukesh Mundhra 700759 8.759% 700759 8.759%

2 Suraj Ratan Mundhra 791627 9.895% 791627 9.895%

3 Rajesh Mundhra 345840 4.323% 345840 4.323%

4 Ajay Kumar Mimani 37040 0.463% 37040 0.463%

5 Navneet Bagri 0 0 0 0

6 Sonali Chaubey 0 0 0 0
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

                 Particulars                                                      Secured                               Unsecured             Deposits                Total

                                                                                excluding deposits                           Loans                                         Indebtedness

   Indebtness at the beginning of the financial year

  i) Principal Amount 5,94,77,088 610,85,065 NIL 12,05,62,152

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 5,94,77,088 6,10,85,065 NIL 12,05,62,152
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

Additions 91,95,208 75,26,647 NIL 1,67,21,855

Reduction 5,90,591 4,46,62,106 NIL 4,52,52,697

Net Change 86,04,617 -3,71,35,459 NIL -2,85,30,842

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year 6,80,81,705 2,39,49,605 NIL 9,20,31,310

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 6,80,81,705 2,39,49,605 NIL 9,20,31,310

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl.No Particulars of Remuneration Name of the MD/WTD/Manager Total 

1 Gross salary Suraj Ratan Mukesh Rajesh Ajay Kumar Mimani (In Rs.)

Mundhra Mundhra Mundhra

 (a)Salary as per provisions contained in 

section 17(1) of the Income Tax. 1961. 24,00,000 12,00,000 12,00,000 3,37,440 51,37,440

 (b)Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the 

Income tax Act, 1961

 (c)Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) 

of the Income Tax Act, 1961

2 Stock option

3 Sweat Equity

4 Commission as % of profit

5 Others, please specify

 Total (A) 24,00,000 12,00,000 12,00,000 3,37,440 51,37,440

 Ceiling as per the Act (5% of Net Profit)

B. Remuneration to other directors:

 Sl. No.Particulars of Remuneration Name of ID (Independent Director) Total Amount

Independent Directors Trinetra Bajpai M.K. Ghosh Pushpa Mishra Nilmani Rathi

•Fee for attending board 25000 75000 100000 100000 300000

 committee meetings.

•Commission

•Others, please specify.

Total Managerial Remuneration 25000 75000 100000 100000 300000

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD 

Sl. No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

  CEO Company Secretary CFO Total 

1. Gross salary

(a)Salaryasper provisions contained in section17(1)

of the Income-tax Act,1961

(b)Valueof perquisites u/s 17(2)Income-tax Act,1961

(c)Profitsinlieuof salary under section 17(3) 

Income-tax  Act,1961 NIL 5,51,087 19,00,000 24,51,087

2. Others, please specify

3. Total 5,51,087 19,00,000 24,51,087
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VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES : NA

Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,

Companies Act Description Penalty/Punishment/ (RD/NCLT/Court) if any 
Compounding (give details)
fees imposed   

COMPANY

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

DIRECTORS

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty - - - - -

Punishment - - - - -

Compounding - - - - -

For and on behalf of the Board

Suraj Ratan Mundhra

Place: Kolkata Chairman & Managing Director

Date:08.06.2021 DIN: 00681223
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The directors present the the Corporate Governance Report for the of Shareholder and Investor complaints on matters such as transfer 
st of shares, non-receipt of shares, ensures expeditious transfer of year ended 31  March, 2021.

shares, issue of duplicate share certificates and approves sub-COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE
division/transmission of Shares.

Corporate governance is all about highest standards of integrity, 
The details of complaints from shareholders are as follows:transparency, adoption of best management principles and values. As 
Year Complaints  Complaints Complaints Complaintsyou company is progressing towards listing in Bombay Stock 

outstanding as Received Resolved Pending as on exchange, it is adopting a strong legacy of fair, transparent and ethical 
 on 01.04.2020   31.03.2021governance practices. Your company is also adopting code of 

2020-21 NIL 1 NIL 1*conduct for its independent directors and diving towards sustained 
corporate growth. *Complaint lodged by Mrs. KaushalyaChandak regarding non-

receipt of Share certificate after transfer through SCORES vide BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS
complaint ref. no. SEBIE/WB18/0000079/1 dated 29.01.2018. In The Composition of Board as on March 31, 2021 was as under:
view of the above, please note that Company has replied to the 

SL. Name of Director Category of  Directorship
complainant that as soon as the company gets the listing approval 

No. 
and its ISIN again become active Company will transfer these 250 

1. TrinetraGokarannath Bajpai Independent Non-ExecutiveDirector shares to her without any delay.
2. Suraj Ratan Mundhra Chairman &Managing Director

** Some requests of small shareholders are pending because our 
3. Mihir Kumar Ghosh Independent Non-Executive Director master is blocked and we cannot do any transfer of shares, demat 
4. Pushpa Mishra**** Independent Non-Executive Director**** and correction or changes in our master maintained by our registrar, 

Link Intime India Private Limited. Our ISIN will get active on approval 5. Nilmani Rathi Independent Non-Executive Director
from BSE for listing then these requests will be disposed off.6. Rajesh Mundhra Whole Time Director
DISCLOSURES UNDER CORPORATE GOVERNANCE7. Mukesh Mundhra Whole Time Director

Name of Related Parties and Relationship:8. Ajay Kumar Mimani Executive Director
****Pushpa Mishra has resigned w.e.f. 10.02.2021 due to some personal reasons. A. KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 1. Mr. Suraj Ratan Mundhra, Managing Director
PERSONNEL DURING THE YEAR: 2. Mr. Rajesh Mundhra, Whole Time Director
   1 Mrs. Pushpa Mishra       Independent 3. Mr. Mukesh Mundhra, Whole Time Director

Non-Executive Director                              4. Mr. Ajay Kumar Mimani, Executive Director
                                   Appointed on 12.08.2019 5. Mr. Navneet  Bagri, Chief Financial Officer

and resigned  on 10.02.2021 6. Ms. Sonali Chaubey, Company Secretary
DETAILS OF BOARD MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR B. RELATED PARTIES
The Board met 4 (Four times) in the calendar year on the following 1. Mr. Mukesh Mundhra, Director and son of MD
dates during the year 2019-20 and the gap between two Board 

2. Mr. Rajesh Mundhra, Director and son of MDMeeting did not exceed 120 days:
3. Mr. Ajay Kumar Mimani, Director and relative of MDName of Meeting Dates on which meetings were held
C. OTHERS (COMPANIES IN WHICH SOME OF THE Board Meeting 14.01.2020, 01.06.2020,25.08.2020,                      

DIRECTORS ARE INTERESTED)15.10.2020
1. ARC Holdings LimitedShareholder Grievance 
2. Classic Furniture & Manufacturing Company Private LimitedCommittee Meeting 25.08.2020

3. Classic Furniture and Furnishings LLPINFORMATION ON COMMITTEES OF BOARD 

D. DETAILS OF WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES The formation of the committee does not apply to the company but as 
the company has applied for listing, so mandatory committees have to 1. ARCL Petrochemicals Limited, C2-54/127, Budge Budge 
be formed and the company is under the process of appointment of Trunk Road, Maheshtala Kolkata-700141
woman independent director to complete the board composition and 2. Allied Maritime & Infra Engineering Private Limited, C2-
as well as committee constitution. 54/127, Budge Budge Trunk Road, Maheshtala Kolkata-700141
SHAREHOLDERS/INVESTORS GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE 3. Wide Range Merchants Private Limited, C2-54/127, Budge 
For redressing investor complaints, the Company had earlierformed Budge Trunk Road, Maheshtala Kol-700141
Shareholders/Investor Grievance committee with the existing 4. Ocilim Advisory Services Private Limited, C2-54/127, Budge 
directors, but the company is under process of re-constituting the Budge Trunk Road, Maheshtala Kol-700141
shareholder’s grievance committee since new independent directors 

5. Nocnex Chemicals Private Limited, C2-54/127, Budge Budge are being inducted in the board. 
Trunk Road, Maheshtala Kolkata-700141

Sl. No. Name of Director Category of Directorship
6. Suksess Chemicals Private Limited, C2-54/127, Budge Budge 

1 Mr. Mukesh Mundhra Executive director
Trunk Road, Maheshtala Kolkata-700141

2 Mr. Ajay Kumar Mimani Executive Director
7. Yocnex Chemicals Private Limited, 

3 Mr. Trinetra Gokarannath Bajpai Non-Executive Director
C2-54/127, Budge Budge Trunk Road, Maheshtala Kolkata-

4 Mr. Mihir Kumar Ghosh Non-Executive Director 700141
The Shareholders/Investor Grievance Committee oversees redressal 

Annexure – 2
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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DISCLOSURE IN FORM AOC-2 

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub section (1) of 
section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: NIL

Particulars Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction 

Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements
or transactions’

Date of approval by the Board

Amount paid as advances, if any

Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
General meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis:

SL No Name (s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms of Date of Amount paid
the related party &  contracts/  the contracts/ the contracts or approval by as advances
nature of relationship arrangements arrangements/ arrangements or  the Board  if any

/transaction transaction transaction including
the value if any   

III) Classic Furniture and Purchase of Ongoing Aggregate amount not 08.06.2020 Rs.69,45,698
Furnishings Private Limited goods and services exceeding Rs.100 lakhs 

in each financial year 

For and on behalf of the Board

Suraj Ratan Mundhra

Managing Director

DIN: 00681223

Place: Kolkata

Date:08.06.2021 
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Form No. MR-3 Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st March 2021 Company during the audit period)
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity 

ruleNo.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during 
Personnel)Rules, 2014] the audit period)

To, (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
The Members, Securities) Regulations,2018(Not applicable to the Company 
ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED during the audit period) and
(U24121WB1992PLC056562) vi) Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company 
RAMPUR, P.S. MAHESHTALA belongs, as identified and compliance whereof as confirmed by the 
Parganas South management 
 KOLKATA (WB)-700141 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of 

the following:
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of (i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good Secretaries of India with respect to board and general meetings
corporate practices by M/s ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED We report that during the period under review, the Company has 
(U24121WB1992PLC056562) (hereinafter called as “the company”). complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines 
The Secretarial Audit was conducted for the year ended 31st March etc. mentioned above. We further report that compliance of applicable 
2021in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by the Company 
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to 
thereon. review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.
Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms We further report that :
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted during the 
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and period under review. However, director PUSHPA MISHRA ( 
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the DIN:07898390) was resigned in the month of February 2021.
explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations 
made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs  warranted due to the spread of the meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least 
Covid-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company seven days in advance, or at shorter notice in compliance with the 

sthas, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31  applicable provisions of the Act(where ever required)and a system 
March 2021complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and participation at the meeting by the Directors.
subject to the reporting made hereinafter: We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and company commensurate with the size and operations of the company 
returns filed and other records maintained by the company for the to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

st regulations and guidelines.financial year ended on 31  March 2021accordingto the provisions of:
We further report that it has been observed that the Company has (i) The Companies Act, 2013(the Act) and the rules made there under;
shown 10 lakhs shares in physical form with promoters in their (ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the 
shareholding pattern where as, registrar & transfer agent (RTA) has rules made thereunder;
shown the same in the name of Mr. Azam Essof Kolia under Non-(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-
resident Indian (NRI) shareholder (not a promoter) .  As per lawsframed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and management, the transfer of above shares  is still pending in the books 
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct of RTA due to certain approvals.

We further report that during the Audit Period, the Company had the investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
following specific events:Borrowings; ( to extent applicable)
1)In pursuant to the SEBI order dated 04.08.2017 ,the company has (v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
required to transfer 10 lakhs shares of Promoters to an independent securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial trust as aprerequisite condition before making an application for listing 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;(not of its shares on stock exchange .

Consequent to such order the company has transferred 10 lakhs applicable to the company during the audit period)
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider shares to SBICAP trustee company Limited on 31stOctober 2019 and 

Trading) Regulations, 2015;(not applicable to the company during made application to BSE LTD. for listing of its shares on 29th November 
audit period) 2019, which is still under process as on date of signing this report. 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
FOR KSN & COMPANYDisclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and amendments 
COMPANY SECRETARIESfrom time to time; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period)
NAND KISHORE SHARMA(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock 
MEM No: A32530 | COP No: 20657Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) 
UDIN:A032530C000411920Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India 
DATE: 02nd June 2021(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;(Not 
PLACE: KOLKATAapplicable to the Company during the audit period)

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of 
Note:This report is to be read with letter of even date which is Annexure Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not applicable to the 
“A” and forms an integral part of this report.Company during the audit period)

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an 
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‘ANNEXURE A’ representation about the Compliance of Laws, rules and 
To, regulations and happening of events etc. 
The Members, 5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other 
ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
(U24121WB1992PLC056562) of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
RAMPUR, P.S. MAHESHTALA procedure on test basis.
Parganas South 6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future 
KOLKATA (WB)-700141 viability of the company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Our report of even date is to be read along with letter. Company.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records as per applicable standards, FOR KSN & COMPANY
is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our COMPANY SECRETARIES
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were 
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the NAND KISHORE SHARMA
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The MEM No: A32530 | COP No: 20657
verification was done on the test basis to ensure that correct facts UDIN: A032530C000411920
are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the process DATE: 02nd June 2021
and practices, we have followedprovide a reasonable basis for our PLACE: KOLKATA
opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of 
financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management 



ARCL Organics Limited

TO THE MEMBERS OF 6. When we read the aforesaid documents, if we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 

ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED
communicate the matters to those charged with governance.

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial 
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS 

Statements
Financial Statements

Opinion
7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
statements of ARCL Organics Limited(“the Company”), which with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021, the statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Income),the Statement of Cash Flows , the Statement of Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
Changes in Equity for the year then ended on that date and notes accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified 
to the financial statements including a summary of significant under section 133 of the Act.  This responsibility also includes 
accounting policies and other explanatory information(herein maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
after referred to as “Standalone Financial Statements”). the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate the explanations given to us, the  aforesaid standalone financial 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the March 31, 2021, its profit(including Other Comprehensive Loss), 
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give Changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that 
a true and fair view  and are free from material misstatement, date.
whether due to fraud or error. 

Basis for Opinion
8. In preparing the financial statements, management is 

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

9. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
company’s financial reporting process.ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 

standalonefinancial statements under the provisions of the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial 
Actand the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other Statements
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 

whether thefinancial statements as a whole are free from 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
our opinion.

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
Other Information assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 3. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise information. The otherinformation comprises the information 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or included in the Management Discussion and Analysis; Board’s 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence Report including Annexures to Board Report, and Shareholders’ 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Informationbut does not include the standalone financial 
financial statements.statements and our auditor’s report thereon.Theaforesaid 

documents are expected to be made available to us after the date 11. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
of this auditor’s report. professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 4. Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do notexpress any form of • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
assurance or conclusion thereon. financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 5. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to s t a t e m e n t s ,  o u r  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  i s  t o  r e a d  t h e  
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a otherinformationwhen it becomes available and, in doing so, 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for consider whether the other information is materially 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, inconsistentwith the standalone financial statements or our 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to 
override of internal control.bematerially misstated.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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• Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate statements comply with theAccounting Standards specified 
in the circumstances.  Under Section 143(3) (i) of the under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from 
financial controls system in place and the operating 

the directors as on 31st March, 2021 taken on record by the 
effectiveness of such controls.

Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 31st March, 2021 from being appointed as a director in 

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
disclosures made by management.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
. • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists separate Report in “Annexure B”.
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 

section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Company to cease to continue as a going concern. (h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the • Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether 
and to the best of our information and according to the the financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
explanations given to us:and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 12. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 
litigations on its financial position in its financial financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
statements – Refer Note 35 of the standalone financial probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
statements.knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in including derivative contracts for which there were any 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of material foreseeable losses.
any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund by the Company.      13. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms 
of sub –section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the 

For JSUS & AssociatesAnnexure-A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No: 329784E14. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

(Adrish Roy)were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

Place : Kolkata Partner(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
Date : 08.06.2021 Membership No. 055826have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books. UDIN- 21055826AAAAAM6936

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow 
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this report are in agreement with the books of 
account.
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Name of the statute Nature Amount Period to which the Forum where the
(Rs. in lakhs) amount relates  dispute is pending

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 640.78 01.04.1988 to 25.08.1998 High Court Kolkata

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax 316.97 2008-09 to 2014-15 Commissioner (Appeal)

Central Excise Act,1944 and
Finance Act,1994 Excise Duty, Service Tax* 17.685 Various years from 2003-04 Commissioner (Appeal)

Central Excise Act,1944 and
Finance Act,1994 Excise Duty, Service Tax* 396.34 2007-08 Central Excise and Service

 Tax  Appellate Tribunal

West Bengal Sales Tax 
Act,1941 Sales Tax 115.42 Various years from Taxation Revisional Board/

1995-96 to 1999-2000 Deputy Commissioner of
Commercial Tax

137.04 Various years from Joint Commissioner/
2005-06 to 2011-12 Sr. Joint Commissioner/

Assistance Commissioner
 of Sales Tax

ARCL Organics Limited

1. (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full 4. According to the information and explanations given to us 
particulars including quantitative details and situation of and the records of the Company examined by us, the 
Property, plant and equipments. provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013, have been complied with in respect of loans, 
(b) As explained to us, the company has a system of verifying all investments guarantees and securities given by the 

its major Property, Plant & Equipments over a period of three Company.
years. The Property, Plant & Equipments so scheduled for 
verification during this year have been physically verified. 5. The Company has not accepted any deposits within the 
The discrepancies noticed on such verification were not meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed 
material and have been properly dealt with in the books of there under.
accounts.

6. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts 
(c) On the basis of our examination of title deeds of the maintained by the Company in respect of products where, 

Company’s immovable properties produced to us, the pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government of 
immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.  India, the maintenance of cost records has been prescribed 

under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and are of the 
2. The inventory has been physically verified by the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and 

management during the year. The discrepancies noticed on records are under process and yet to be updated. We have, 
physical verification of inventory as compared to book however, not made a detailed examination of these books 
records were not material and have been properly dealt with and records to determine whether they are accurate or 
in the books of account. complete.

3. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us 7. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us 
and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, the and the records of the Company examined by us, in our 
Company has granted unsecured loans to subsidiaries opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing the 
companies covered in the register maintained under section undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, 
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms and conditions of employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs, 
these loans in our opinion are not prejudicial to the interests goods and services tax, cess and any other statutory dues, 
of the Company. as applicable, with the appropriate authorities.  

(b) There is no stipulation regarding recovery of loans as these (b) According to the information and explanations given to us 
loans are repayable on demand. and the records of the Company examined by us, the 

particulars of dues of Income Tax, Sales tax, Excise Duty & (c ) The aforesaid loans being repayable on demand, there is no 
Service Tax as at 31st March 2021which has not been amount overdue for more than ninety days in respect of 
deposited on account of a dispute are as follows.  recovery of principal and interest of the above loans. 

ANNEXURE- A: TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of  ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 13 of the Auditors’ Report of even date]

*Above amount does not include Penalty 
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ARCL Organics Limited

8. According to the information and explanation given to us and the 14. The Company has neither made any preferential allotment of 
records of the Company examined by us, the Company has not shares nor fully or partly convertible debentures during the year 
defaulted in repayment of duesof loans or borrowings to any under audit.
banks. 

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and 
The Company has neither taken any loan from financial the records of the Company examined by us, the Company has 
institutions or Government nor issued any debentures. not entered into any non-cash transactions, with any director of 

the Company or persons connected with them, involving 
9. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanation acquisition of assets by or from them for consideration other than 

given to us, on an overall basis, the money raised by Company cash.
during the year by way of term loan have been applied for the 
purpose for which they were obtained. 16. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations 

given to us, not being a non-banking financial company, the 
The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of 
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

10. During the course of our examination of the books and records of 
the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come 

For JSUS & Associatesacross any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or 
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case Chartered Accountants
by the management. 

Firm Registration No: 329784E

11. According to the information and explanations given to us and the 
records of the company examined by us, total managerial 
remuneration paid/ payable as reflected in the financial 

(Adrish Roy)
statements for the year ended 31st March 2021 are in 

Place : Kolkata Partneraccordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
Date : 08.06.2021 Membership No. 055826provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act.  

UDIN- 21055826AAAAAM6936
12. The related statutes are not applicable as the Company is not a 

Nidhi Company.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and the 
records of the Company examined by us, the company has 
complied with the requirements of sections 177 and 188 of the Act 
with respect to its transactions with the related parties. Pursuant 
to the requirement of the applicable Accounting Standard, details 
of the related party transactions have been disclosed in Note 29 
of the standalone financial statements for the year under audit. 
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ANNEXURE- B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 14 (f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
–sections 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) procedures that 

1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 1) Pertain to the maintenance of the records that, in reasonable 
reporting of ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED(“the Company”) as of detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
31st March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial dispositions of the assets of the company; 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

2) provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Control recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements in accordance with generally accepted 
2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 

accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of 
maintaining internal financial control based on the internal control 

the Company are being made only in accordance with 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 

authorization of management and directors of company; and 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of the financial statements.
adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Control over Financial 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 

Reporting
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the 

7.  Because of inherent limitation of internal financial control over safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
improper management override of controls, material records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 
misstatements due to errors or fraud may occur and not be information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
detected. Also, projections of any evaluations of the internal 

Auditors’ Responsibility
financial control over financial reporting to future periods are 

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Guidance conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
Note” and the Standard on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed procedures may deteriorate.
to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 

Opinion
applicable. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respect, an we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
adequate internal financial controls system over financial audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2021, established and maintained and if such controls operated 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria effectively in all material respects.
established by the company considering, the essential 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting, 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 
issued by ICAI.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial control 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material For JSUS & Associates
Weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 

Chartered Accountantsoperating effectiveness of internal controls based on the 
assessed risk. The procedure selected depends on the auditor’s Firm Registration No: 329784E
judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material 
misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

(Adrish Roy)
5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient Place : Kolkata Partner

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Date : 08.06.2021 Membership No. 055826

Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 
UDIN- 21055826AAAAAM6936reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

6.  A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial 
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Note No.   As on 31.03.2021  As on  31.03.2020 

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2  193,797,922  200,012,542 
Right of Use 2  2,053,022  -   
Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 3  12,347,224  12,313,522 
(ii) Other financial Assets 4  3,258,363  3,258,363 
(iii) Loans 10  -    -   
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5  -    4,149,951 
Total Non - Current Assets  211,456,531  219,734,378 

Current assets 
Inventories 6  62,673,714  57,277,183 
Financial Assets 

   (i)   Trade receivables 7  228,790,454  168,136,677 
   (ii)  Cash and cash equivalents 8  13,749,779  9,548,897 
   (iii)  Other Bank Balances 9  62,755,998  62,088,078 
   (iv)  Loans 10  5,219,255  283,817 
   (v) Other Financial Assets 4  281,500  265,000 
Current Tax Assets 11  12,765,886  7,528,626 
Other current assets 12  19,998,809  20,650,774 
Total Current Assets  406,235,396  325,779,052 
Total Assets  617,691,927  545,513,430 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
Equity Share capital 13  80,000,000  80,000,000 

. Other Equity 14  234,975,815  163,951,549 

. Total equity  314,975,815  243,951,549 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities

. Financial Liabilities
   (i) Borrowings 15  21,628,739  57,376,430 
   (ii) Other financial liabilities 16  31,343,659  34,000,000 
Provisions 17  21,105,168  17,567,619 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5  15,545,649  -   
Total non-current liabilities  89,623,215  108,944,049 
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

   (i)  Borrowings 15  63,557,183  57,498,805 
   (ii)  Trade payables - -
Outstanding dues to Micro and Small enterprises  342,200  601,346 
Outstanding dues to parties other than  Micro and Small enterprises 18  107,270,505  108,241,625 

   (iii) Other financial liabilities 16  21,172,864  18,956,927 
Provisions 17  6,398,971  4,919,056 
Other current liabilities 19  14,351,174  2,400,073 
Total Current Liabilities  213,092,898  192,617,832 

Total liabilities  302,716,112  301,561,881 

Total Equity & Liabilities  617,691,927  545,513,430 

Significant accounting policies 1
Additional notes to financial statements 27- 44

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For JSUS & Associates Suraj Ratan Mundhra Mukesh Mundhra
Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director
(Firm registration no. 329784E)  DIN-00681223  DIN-00658602

 
Adrish Roy Navneet Bagri Sonali Chaubey
Partner Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  
(Membership no. 055826) (Membership no. A42299) 
Place: Kolkata
Date:  08/06/2021 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2021  Amount in ` 
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Notes As on As on
31.03.2021  31.03.2020

I. Revenue from operations 20  866,713,217  707,853,032 

II. Other income 21  14,139,592  11,148,103 

III. Total Revenue (I + II)  880,852,810  719,001,135 

IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 22  575,446,519  465,681,767 

Purchase of stock-in-trade  -    -   

Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 23  (6,599,411)  1,957,220 

Employee benefit expense 24  65,449,405  59,889,881 

Finance costs 25  19,197,334  30,357,202 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2  14,854,732  14,253,368 

Other expenses 26  109,474,693  113,093,682 

Total expenses  777,823,272  685,233,120 

V. Profit before tax (III - IV)  103,029,538  33,768,015 

Income tax expenses

 - Current tax  15,510,916  4,532,882 

 - MAT Credit  (5,280,207) -

 - Deferred tax  19,695,602  3,520,641 

Total tax expense  29,926,311  8,053,523 

Profit after tax  73,103,227  25,714,492 

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

(a) Remeasurements Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plan  (2,112,663)  (3,157,363)

(b) Gains/(Losses) on fair valuation of Equity Instruments  33,702  (123,164)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (2,078,961)  (3,280,527)

Total comprehensive income for the year  71,024,266  22,433,965 

Earnings per equity share attributable to owners of ARCL Organics Limited."

 Basic earnings per share  9.14  3.21 

 Diluted earnings per share  9.14  3.21 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

Additional notes to financial statements 27- 44

In terms of our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board

For JSUS & Associates Suraj Ratan Mundhra Mukesh Mundhra

Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director

(Firm registration no. 329784E)  DIN-00681223  DIN-00658602

 

Adrish Roy Navneet Bagri Sonali Chaubey

Partner Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  
(Membership no. 055826) (Membership no. A42299) 
Place: Kolkata
Date:  08/06/2021 

Statement of Profit and loss as on 31st March 2021  Amount in ` 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2021

A. Equity Share Capital

Notes  Amount in ` 

As at 1 April 2019 13  80,000,000 

Changes in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2020  80,000,000 

Changes in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2021  80,000,000 

30

B. Other Equity Amount in `  

 Other Comprehensive Income
Notes

 Securities Retained Remeasurements Fair Valuation  Total other
Premium Reserve   Earnings  of the defined of Equity  equity 

 benefit plans  Instrument

Balance at 31 March 2019  112,250,000  28,825,071  515,165  (72,652)  141,517,584 

Profit for the year  25,714,492  25,714,492 

Other comprehensive income  (3,157,363)  (123,164)  (3,280,527)

Total comprehensive income for the year  25,714,492  (3,157,363)  (123,164)  22,433,965 

14

Balance at 31 March 2020  112,250,000  54,539,563  (2,642,198)  (195,816)  163,951,549 

Profit for the year  73,103,227  73,103,227 

Other comprehensive income  (2,112,663)  33,702  (2,078,961)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    73,103,227  (2,112,663)  33,702  71,024,266 

Balance at 31 March 2021  112,250,000  127,642,790  (4,754,861)  (162,114)  234,975,815 



ARCL Organics Limited

 As on 31.03.2021  As on  31.03.2020

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss  103,029,538  33,768,015 

Adjustments for :
Depreciation on Tangible Assets  14,854,732  14,253,368 
Interest Income  (3,663,834)  (4,775,980) 
Interest Expense  12,708,176  21,618,786 
Acturial Gain /loss transfeed to OCI  (2,078,961)  (3,280,527) 

 21,820,113  27,815,647 
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  124,849,650  61,583,662 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables  (1,230,267)  35,352,713 
Increase / (Decrease) in  Other Current Liabilities  11,951,101  (16,155,897) 
Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions  1,479,915  193,119 
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Provisions  3,537,549  3,222,932 
Increase / (Decrease) in  Other Current financial Liabilities  2,215,937  18,956,927 
Increase / (Decrease) in  Other Non Current financial Liabilities  (2,656,341)  -   
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Bank balances  (667,920)  1,719,908 
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables  (60,653,777)  (357,198) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories  (5,396,531)  (6,474,468) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances  (4,935,438)  (63,794) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets (4,816,005)  12,516,069 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets (16,500)  - 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current financial Assets  -    (159,443) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances  -    (61,188,277)  3,414,717  52,165,585 
Cash generated from operations  63,661,373  113,749,248 
Taxes paid (Net of refunds)  10,000,000  661,667 
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities (A)  53,661,373  113,087,581 

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets  (11,077,133)  (8,124,156)  -   
Disposal  of Fixed Assets  383,999  172,167  -   
Investments in Subsidiaries  (33,702)  123,164  -   
Interest Received  3,663,834  4,775,980  -   
Net cash from investing activities (B)  (7,063,003)  (3,052,845) 

C. Cash flow From Financing Activities
[Proceeds from short - term borrowings  6,058,379  (101,825,352) 
Proceeds/(Repayment) from long - term borrowings  (35,747,691)  16,268,663 
Interest Paid  (12,708,176)  (42,397,488)  (21,618,786)  (107,175,476) 
Net cash used for  financing activities (C )  (42,397,488)  (107,175,476) 

Net Increase/(decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  4,200,883  2,859,260 
Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year  9,548,897  6,689,637 
Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the year  13,749,779  9,548,897 

Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents - Increase/(Decrease)  (4,200,882)  (2,859,260) 

 
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

For JSUS & Associates Suraj Ratan Mundhra Mukesh Mundhra
Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director
(Firm registration no. 329784E)  DIN-00681223  DIN-00658602

 
Adrish Roy Navneet Bagri Sonali Chaubey
Partner Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  
(Membership no. 055826) (Membership no. A42299) 
Place: Kolkata
Date:  08/06/2021 

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021  Amount in ` 
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Note 1 Corporate Information, Significant Accounting Policies in their respective policies.
and Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
Assumptions

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and 
A. Corporate information equipment at the end of each reporting period. This 

ARCL Organics Ltd was incorporated on 8th September, 1992. It reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in 
is a public limited company having its registered office at Rampur, future periods.
Budge Budge Trunk Road, Kolkata- 700141, West Bengal. The Valuation of deferred tax assets
Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and 

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets selling of chemical based product, Resins, Additives, Hardeners 
at the end of each year. and specialized One-Shot Resins. Over the years, ARCL 

3. Current and Non-current Classificationhasbroadened its product range and is having an integrated & 
computerized fully automated petrochemical complex. The The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet 
Company caters to both domestic and export market. based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated 

as current when it is:Today along with a wide range of Resins & Additives, Hardeners 
and specialized One-Shot Resins, ARCL has the expertise to  - Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in 
offer tailor-made solutions as per its client’s requirements. normal operating cycle

B. Significant accounting policies  - Held primarily for the purpose of trading

1. Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements  - Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting 
period, orThe financial statements of the Company have been prepared in 

accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS), as  - Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 
the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian Accounting after the reporting period 
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant provisions of the act.

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical 

A liability is current when:
cost convention with the exception of certain assets and liabilities 

 - It is expected to be settled in normal operating cyclethat are required to be carried at fair value by Ind AS. Fair Value is 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer  - It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
of liabilities in an orderly transaction between market participants  - It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting 
at the measurement date. period, or 
Accounting policies are consistently applied except where a  - There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the 
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in 

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.accounting policy hitherto in use. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current The Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR which is the 
assets and liabilities.Company's functional and presentation currency and all values 
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise 
for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. indicated. Accounting policies have been consistently applied 
The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially 

adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires 4. Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Property, plant and equipment are carried at the cost of 
2. Use of estimates acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. Costs 

directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with 
property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by IND AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments 
management.and assumptions. These estimates, judgment and assumptions 

affect the application of accounting policies and the reported Freehold land is carried at its historical cost. Historical cost 
amount of Assets and Liabilities and disclosure of contingent includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition 
Liabilities on the date of the Financial Statements and reported of items.
amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. 

Any subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount 
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured 
are affected. reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognized in profit 

or loss as incurred.Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the 
financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties 
financial year, is in respect of impairment of investments, useful and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from 
lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on 
assets, provisions and contingent liabilities and fair value making the assets ready for its intended use, other incidental 
measurement of financial instruments have been discussed expenses and interest on borrowings attributable to acquisition of 
below. Key source of estimation of uncertainty in respect of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the assets is ready for its 
revenue recognition and employee benefits have been discussed intended use.
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5. Depreciation are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate 
allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts based on the Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other 
ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. 
Individual trade receivables are written off when management Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided on the 
deems them not to be collectible.straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 

II to the Companies Act, 2013. The assets residual values, useful Financial Asset at Fair value through OCI
life and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted if All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries falling 
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value 

6. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). If the company 
decides to designate an equity instrument at fair value through The management periodically assesses using external and 
OCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding internal sources, whether there is an indication that both tangible 
dividends, are recognized in the OCI.and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is 

recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its Financial Asset Derecognition
recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed The company derecognizes a financial asset when the 
if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire orit 
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and 

7. Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures rewards of ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity 
instruments designated at fair value through OCI, the associated Investments in subsidiaries are accounted at cost in the financial 
fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from statements.
OCI to Retained Earnings.

8 Cash and Bank Balances
Financial Liabilities – Initial recognition and measurement

Cash and bank balances consist of:
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as 

(i) Cash and cash equivalents financial liabilities at amortized cost, loans and borrowings, or as 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprises of payables, as appropriate. 
cash in hand and at bank, bank deposits and also short term Subsequent Measurement
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, 

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on which is subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 
their classification which is as follows:These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal 

and usage. Interest bearing borrowings, trade payablesand other payables 
issued by the company are subsequently measured at amortized (ii) Other bank balances
cost. 

These include balances and deposits with banks that are 
Measurement of Fair Valuesrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company 9. Inventories
require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and 

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an 
is lower. Cost of inventories includes all the cost that are incurred established control framework with respect to the measurement 
in bringing the inventories to their present condition and location. of fair values.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 

Trade Payablescourse of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated cost necessary to make the sale. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services 

provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which 10. Financial Instruments
are unpaid. These amounts are secured and unsecured. Trade 

Financial Asset Initial Recognition and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. 
company's statement of financial position when the company Also, the segregation has been made for the micro, small and 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. medium enterprises creditors.
The company determines the classification of its financial assets 11. Fair Value Measurement
and liabilities at initial recognition.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or 
Subsequent Measurement paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between 
The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on market participants at the measurement date under current 
their classification which is as follows: market conditions.

Financial Asset at Fair value through Profit or Loss Fair Values are categorized into different levels in a fair value 
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include 
follows:financial assets held for sale in the near term and those 

designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
loss. assets or liabilities

Financial Asset measured at Amortized Cost . Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that 
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as Loans, receivables and cash are non-derivative financial assets 
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an 

active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
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observable market data (unobservable inputs). unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. 
Current and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the 
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to the company uses observable market data as far   as possible. If the 
items recognized in the other comprehensive income or inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall 
directly in equity.into a different level of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value 

measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the 16. Employee benefits
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on 
the entire measurement. a number of factors that are determined on a n actuarial basis 

12. Borrowing using a number of assumptions

Borrowings are recognized at fair value. They are classified as (i) Short-term obligations
current liabilities unless the company has the right to defer the Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary 
settlement of the liability for atleast 12 months after the reporting benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 
period. Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when months after the end of the period in which the employees 
the obligations is discharged, cancelled or expired. render the related service are recognized in respect of 

13. Provisions and Contingent Liabilities employees services upto the end of reporting and are 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the The Company recognizes a provision when there is a present 
liabilities are settled.obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an out 

flow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the (ii) Long term obligations
amount of obligation. A disclosure for a Contingent Liability is The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave that are not 
made when there is a possible obligation from a past event but expected to be settled wholly within 12 months are 
their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non- measured at the present value of expected future payments 
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly to be made in respect of services made by employees upto 
within the control of the company the end of the reporting period. The benefits are discounted 

14. Revenue Recognition using the government securities at the end of reporting 
period.In accordance with Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with 

customers”, Revenue from contracts with customers is (iii) Post employment obligations - Gratuity
recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or services The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in 
to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value 
which the Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting 
those goods or services. period less the fair value of the plan assets. The present 
(i) Sale of Goods value of the obligation is determined by discounting the 

estimated future cash outflows by reference to market Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the 
yields at the end of the reporting period on government Company satisfies the performance obligation in 
bonds that have the term approximating to the terms of the accordance with the provisions of contract with customer. 
related obligations.This is achieved when control of the product has been 

transferred to the customer, which is generally determined 17. Earnings per Share
when title, ownership, risk of obsolesce and loss pass to the Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit for 
customer and Company has present right to payment. The the year attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the 
Company collects goods and services tax (GST) on behalf weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
of the government and, therefore, these are not economic 

18. Cash Flowbenefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded 
The investing and financing activities in cash flow statement do from revenue.
not have a direct impact on current cash flows although they do (ii) Interest Income
affect the capital and asset structure of an entity. The company 

Interest Income is recognized based on time proportion has disclosed these transactions, to the extent, material in notes 
basis considering the amount outstanding and the rate to cash flow statement.
applicable. Interest Income is included in the Other Income 

19. Segment Reportingin the statement of Profit and Loss.
The Company has identified that its operating activity is a single 15. Income Tax
primary business segment. Accordingly, whole of India has been 

(i) Current Income Tax considered as one geographical segment. Hence, segment 
Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to reporting is not applicable.
be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income 20. Foreign Currencies
Tax Act, 1961.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the 
(ii) Deferred Tax Company at the functional currency spot rates (i.e. INR) at the 

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary 
on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
and liabilities and their carrying amount for the translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the 
financialreporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred reporting date.
Tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement 
that taxable profit will be available against which the of transactions in foreign currencies and from the translation of 
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
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at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in Profit &Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage 
Statement of Profit and Loss. costs, etc. are recognised immediately in the statement of Profit 

&Loss.21. Research and Development
Assets given under a finance lease are recognised as a Research and Development expenditures of revenue nature 
receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the are charged to Profit & Loss Account, while capital expenditure 
lease. Lease income is recognised over the period of the lease is added to the cost of fixed assets in the year in which these are 
so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in incurred.
the lease. Initial direct costs relating to assets given on finance 

22. Lease leases are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.
a. Where the Company is the lessee 23. Operating Segments
The company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with 
liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial maker (CODM). The CODM who is responsible for allocating 
amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments resources and assessing performance of the operating 
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors of the 
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and Company.
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset 

24. Recent Pronouncementor the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives 
received. On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") 

through a notification, amended Schedule III of the Companies The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the 
Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of straight-line method from the commencement date to the 
Schedule III and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the 
amendments relating to Division II which relate to companies end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use 
whose financial statements are required to comply with assets are determined on the same basis as those of property 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are: and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 

reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain Balance Sheet: 
re-measurements of the lease liability. • Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the head 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of ‘financial liabilities’, duly   distinguished as current or non-
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement current. 
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if • Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in 
that rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior 
borrowing rate. period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the 
Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as current reporting period. 
the discount rate. • Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters. 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease • Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, 
liability comprise the following: trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset 
Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; under development. 

Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, • If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for 
initially measured using the index or rate as at the which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, 
commencement date; then disclosure of details of where it has been used. 

Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value • Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ 
guarantee; and such as compliance with approved schemes of arrangements, 

compliance with number of layers of companies, title deeds of The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is 
immovable property not held in name of company, loans and reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional 
advances to promoters, directors, key managerial personnel renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise 
(KMP) and related parties, details of benami property held etc. an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a 

lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to Statement of profit and loss: 
terminate early. • Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social 
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or virtual 

currency specified under the head ‘additional information’ in the The company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets 
notes forming part of the standalone financial statements. and lease liabilities for short-term leases of real estate 

properties that have a lease term of 12 months. The company The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate 
recognises the lease payments associated with these leases the same to give effect to them as required by law.
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

b. Where the Company is the lessor

Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. 
Lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including 
depreciation are recognised as an expense in the statement of 
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NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE  YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

Note 3 Investments 

         Amount in ` 

Particulars  As at 31  As at 31 
March 2021  March 2020

  Non - Current Investments 

 Investment in Equity Instruments 

 (A) Investment in Subsidiaries - Unquoted (at Cost) 

 (i) ARCL Petrochemicals Ltd  1,955,940  1,955,940 

 144344 shares (31.03.2020- 144344) shares of Rs. 10 each 

 (ii) Ocilim Advisory Services Pvt Ltd  1,514,340  1,514,340 

 144344 shares (31.03.2020- 144344) shares of Rs. 10 each 

 (iii) Wide Range Merchants Pvt Ltd  2,045,190  2,045,190 

 144344 shares (31.03.2020- 144344) shares of Rs. 10 each 

(iv) Allied Maritime & Infra Engineering Pvt Ltd  2,079,940  2,079,940 

 144344 shares (31.03.2020- 144344) shares of Rs. 10 each 

(v) Nocnex Chemicals Pvt Ltd  1,543,430  1,543,430 

 144344 shares (31.03.2020- 144344) shares of Rs. 10 each 

 (vi)Yocnex Chemicals Pvt Ltd  1,543,430  1,543,430 

 144344 shares (31.03.2020- 144344) shares of Rs. 10 each 

(vii) Suksess Chemicals Pvt Ltd  1,543,430  1,543,430 

 144344 shares (31.03.2020- 144344) shares of Rs. 10 each 

 12,225,700  12,225,700 

(B) Investment in Others - Quoted* (FVTOCI) 

 Bank of Baroda  

 1640 Equity shares  (31/03/2020- 1640)  121,524  87,822 

 121,524  87,822 

 Total (A+B)  12,347,224  12,313,522 

    

Note 4 Other financial Assets

 Amount in ` 

Particulars  As at 31  As at 31 
March 2021  March 2020

  Non Current 

  Deposit with CESC  3,258,363  3,258,363 

 Total  3,258,363  3,258,363 

 Current 

 Security Deposits  281,500  265,000 

 Total  281,500  265,000 
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Note 5 Deferred tax Liability/Assets (net)

         Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 Deferred Tax Assets:

Timing difference on account of:

Defined benefit obligations And Unabsorved depreciation  6,506,539  26,869,889 

Deferred Tax Assets (A)  6,506,539  26,869,889 

Less : Deferred Tax Liabilities

Timing difference on account of:

Property, plant and equipment  (22,052,190)  (22,719,938)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (B)  (22,052,190)  (22,719,938)

Deferred Tax Asset (Net)  (15,545,651)  4,149,951   

Note 6 : Inventories (valued  at lower of cost and net realizable value)  *

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Raw Materials  9,337,366  19,849,881 

Finished goods  34,316,891  27,717,480 

Stores and spares  19,019,457  9,709,822 

Total  62,673,714  57,277,183 

* As taken, valued and certified by the management 

Note 7: Trade Receivables

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Considered Good- Secured  -    -   

Considered Good- Unsecured  228,790,454  168,136,677 

Considered Good- Doubtful  -    -   

Total  228,790,454  168,136,677 

Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

(a) Balances with banks

  (i) In Current Account  10,232,994  5,650,960 

(b) Cash in hand  3,516,785  3,897,937 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  13,749,779  9,548,897 

Note 9 Other Bank Balances

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Earmarked Balances

      -Margin Money  15,104,105  17,009,330 

Other Deposit Account  47,651,893  45,078,748 

      -Deposit accounts with maturuty beyond three months upto twelve months

Total  62,755,998  62,088,078 
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Note 10 Loans

         Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

  Non Current 

 Loan to Others  -    -   

 Total  -    -   

 Current 

 Loan to Others  4,647,341 

 Loan to Related Party  571,914  283,817 

 Total  5,219,255  283,817       

Note-11 Current Tax Assets

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 Non Current 

  Advance tax including TDS & MAT Credit  12,765,886  7,528,626 

 Total  12,765,886  7,528,626 

Note 12 Other Current Assets

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 (i) Advances other than Capital Advances 

  Other Receivables  7,933,193  11,125,581 

 7,933,193  11,125,581 

 (ii) Others 

CENVAT/ Service Tax/ Sales Tax recoverable  9,711,364  8,719,507 

GST Input (net of Output)  2,354,252  805,686 

 12,065,616  9,525,193 

Total  19,998,809  20,650,774 

 

Note 13 : Share Capital

 

As at March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

 

 Number  Amount(`)   Number Amount(`) 

Authorised

Equity shares of Rs.10 each  33,750,000  337,500,000  33,750,000  337,500,000 

 337,500,000  337,500,000 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up

 Equity shares of Rs.10 each  8,000,000  80,000,000  8,000,000  80,000,000 

 80,000,000  80,000,000 
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Details of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of Equity Shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

 No. of % of  No. of % of
Shares held   Holding  Shares held   Holding  

SUSHILA DEVI MUNDHRA  1,031,175  12.89  1,031,175  12.89 

SURAJ RATAN MUNDHRA  791,627  9.90  791,627  9.90 

SURAJ RATAN MUNDHRA HUF  670,005  8.38  670,005  8.38 

ARC HOLDINGS LTD  1,223,380  15.29  1,223,380  15.29 

MUKESH MUNDHRA  700,759  8.76  700,759  8.76 

* No Shares were either issued otherwise than for payment being received in cash or brought back or alloted as fully paid up bonus shares in the 
preceeding five years from the date of this balance sheet

Reconcilation of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year and at the end of the reporting period

EQUITY SHARES

As at March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

 Number  Amount(`)   Number Amount(`) 

At the beginning of the period  8,000,000  80,000,000  8,000,000  80,000,000 

Issued during the period  -    -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the period  8,000,000  80,000,000  8,000,000  80,000,000 

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares both Equity Shares & Preference Shares  

Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per 
share held and rank pari passu. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding

Note 14. Other equity

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

General Reserve  -    -   

Securities Premium Reserve  112,250,000  112,250,000 

Retained earnings  127,642,790  54,539,563 

Other comprehensive income  (4,916,975)  (2,838,014) 

Total  234,975,815  163,951,549 



ARCL Organics Limited

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE  YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

41

Note 15 Borrowings

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Non -  Current

Secured

Vehicle loan from Bank (Hypothecation of Vehicle) (1)  6,100,268  10,796,950 

 6,100,268  10,796,950 

Unsecured

Loan from Body Coporate  1,594,749  32,438,347 

Loan from Others  10,129,612  11,001,288 

Loan from Other Bank

(i) Yes Bank  1,635,368  1,218,626 

(ii) ICICI Bank  2,168,742  1,921,219 

 15,528,470  46,579,480 

Total  21,628,739  57,376,430 

Current

Secured

Other loans from banks

Fund Based - Cash Credit (2)

(i) Bank of Baroda  46,874,028  39,482,522 

(ii) Central Bank of India (CBI)  5,314,400  3,510,698 

Unsecured

Loan from NBFC  5,257,239  11,216,510 

Loan from Other Bank

(i) Yes Bank  4,008,816  1,641,018 

(ii) ICICI Bank  1,317,701  1,648,057 

(iii) Central Bank of India  785,000  -   

Total  63,557,183  57,498,805  

(1) EMI amounting to Rs 20621/-per installment per Truck Body of 4 Truck Body payble in 53 instlments of which 31 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 62504/-per installment per Truck of 4 Truck payble in 65 instlments of which 34 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 30958/-per installment of Car payble in 53 instlments of which 47 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 37833/-per installment of Car payble in 40 instlments of which 21 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 59473/-per installment of Car payble in 65 instlments of which 42 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 18731/-per installment of Car payble in 60 instlments of which 13 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 9619/-per installment of Car payble in 60 instlments of which 12 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 34300/-per installment of Truck Re-Finance payble in 36 instlments of which 21 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 29580/-per installment of Truck Re-Finance payble in 36 instlments of which 21 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 26820/-per installment of Truck Re-Finance payble in 36 instlments of which 21  installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 27440/-per installment of Truck Re-Finance payble in 36 instlments of which 17 installments has been paid. 

(2) Secured by Hypothecation of Raw Material , Work in Progress, Finished Goods,Consumable Spares, Book Debts  Common Collateral 
immovable property, Plant & Machinery at Rampur (Budge Budge), Personal Gurantee of Ajay Kurmar Mimani, Mukesh Mundhra, Vijay Mimani, 
Suraj Ratan Mundhra  and Exclusive charges on FD of Rs 4.75Cr. along with accrude interest thereon.
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Note 16 Other Financial Liabilities
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Non - Current
Advance against Development  30,000,000  34,000,000 
Lease Liability  1,343,659  -   

 31,343,659  34,000,000 
Current
Lease Liability  815,916  -   
Sundry liabilities for expense  12,476,538  13,270,009 
Curent Maturity of Long term Debt  7,880,410  5,686,918 
 21,172,864  18,956,927 
Total  52,516,523  52,956,927 

Note 17 Provisions
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Non - Current
  Provision for Employee Benefits
(a) Provision for Leave Encashment  2,676,082  2,159,978 
(b) Provision for Gratuity  18,429,086  15,407,641 
Total  21,105,168  17,567,619 

Current
(a) Provision for Employee Benefits  4,116,148  2,951,555 
(b) Provision for Gratuity  1,978,011  1,741,105 
(c)  Provision for Leave Encashment  304,812  226,396 
Total  6,398,971  4,919,056  

Note 18 Trade Payables
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Outstanding dues to Micro and Small enterprises  342,200  601,346 
Outstanding dues to parties other than  Micro and Small enterprises  107,270,505  108,241,625 

 *Details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small & 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME Act) are based on information made 
available to the Company. 
Total  107,612,705  108,842,971 

Disclouser under MSMED act.
a. the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of accounting year  342,200  601,346 
b. Interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 0 0
c. Interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but interest under the
MSMED Act, 2006 not paid) 0 0
d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 12263 0
e. Interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23. 0 0

Note 19 Other Current liabilities
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Statutory Liabilities  2,915,005  2,400,074 
Advance From Customer  11,436,167  -   
Total  14,351,172  2,400,074 
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Note - 20:  Revenue from Operations

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Sale of products (including excise duty)

Domestic Sales  555,666,489  413,334,379 

Export Sales  310,028,255  282,177,268 

 865,694,744  695,511,647 

Other Operating revenues

Duty Drawback  421,721  975,362 

Export Incentive  596,752  11,366,023 

 1,018,473  12,341,385 

Total revenue from continuing operations  866,713,217  707,853,032 

Note 21 : Other Income
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Interest Income 
Bank Interest Received  3,442,125  4,750,176 
Interest Received from Others  221,709  25,804 

 3,663,834  4,775,980 
Other non-operating income 
Others  10,475,758  6,372,123 

 10,475,758  6,372,123 
Other Income  14,139,592  11,148,103 

Note -22: Cost of Raw Materials & Component Consumed
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Inventory at the beginning of the year  19,849,881  7,137,750 
Add:- Purchases  564,934,004  478,393,898 

 584,783,885  485,531,648 

Less:- Inventory at the end of year  9,337,366  19,849,881 

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed  575,446,519  465,681,767 

Note -23 : (Increase)/Decrease in Inventory
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Inventories at the end of the Year
Finished goods  34,316,891  27,717,480 

 34,316,891  27,717,480 
Inventories at the begining of the Year
Finished goods  27,717,480  29,674,700 

 27,717,480  29,674,700 

(Increase)/Decrease In Inventory  -6,599,411  1,957,220 
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Note -24 : Employee Benefit Expenses

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

(a)  Salaries,Wages and Incentives  56,593,930  50,873,532 

(b)  Contribution to Provident and Other funds  5,295,144  5,431,793 

(c)  Staff Welfare Expenses   3,560,331  3,584,557 

Total  65,449,405  59,889,881  

Note- 25 : Finance Cost

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Interest Expense  12,708,176  21,618,786 

Other Borrowing Cost  6,489,159  8,738,416 

Total  19,197,334  30,357,202 

Note- 26 : Other Expenses

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Rent  528,904  2,135,866 

Carriage Outward  16,345,914  10,375,741 

Research & Development  988,363  1,477,303 

Discount Allowed  -    27,004 

Travelling & Conveyance  4,601,513  13,362,619 

Repairs & Maintenance

    - Machinery  11,747,119  5,014,837 

Telephone & Postage Expenses  865,637  1,040,129 

Insurance Expenses  853,401  938,418 

Filing fees, Rates & Taxes  5,642,110  12,591,032 

Payment to Auditors

     - Statutory Audit Fees  325,000  325,000 

     - Tax Audit Fees  25,000  25,000 

     - Other Matter  7,000  -   

Legal & Consultancy Charges  5,253,568  6,244,042 

Business Development & Export Expenses

Subscription & Donation  3,478,440  2,919,903 

Miscelleneous Expenses  18,221,144  12,579,314 

Export Expenses  30,289,191  24,356,724 

Import Expenses  1,446,958  1,109,073 

Loading & Unloading Expenses  4,341,179  7,518,541 

Write Off  4,514,252  11,053,136 

Total  109,474,693  113,093,682  

NOTE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE  YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021
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27. Earnings per Share  Amount in ` 

2020-21 2019-20

a) Net profit attributable to the shareholders (PAT) 73,103,227 25,714,492

b) Weighted average no. of equity share of face value of ` 10/- each 8,000,000 8,000,000

 Basic earnings per share 9.14 3.21

c) Weighted average potential no. of equity shares 8,000,000 8,000,000

 Diluted earnings per share 9.14 3.21

28. Income tax Reconciliation  Amount in `

Reconciliation of Accounting profit and tax expense 2020-21 2019-20

Profit before tax 103,029,538 33,768,015

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 27.82% (previous year - 27.82%) 28,662,817 9,394,262

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income

- Companies Act Depreciation 4,132,586 3,965,287

Tax effect of amounts which are deductible (non-taxable) in calculating taxable income

- Income Tax Act Depreciation 3,358,652 3,853,378

Tax effect of other adjustments 587,743 844,114

Impact of UnabsorbedDepreciation 18,618,300

MAT Impact 5,280,207 4,129,175

Income Tax Recognized in Profit & Loss account (MAT) 15,510,916 4,532,882

29. Related Party Transactions

Disclosure of related party transactions in terms of Ind AS 24 is given below. 

(i) Key Managerial Personnel

(a) Name of the related parties with relationship:

i) Mr. Suraj Ratan Mundhra, Director

ii) Mr. Mukesh Mundhra, Director

iii) Mr. Ajay Kumar Mimani, Director 

iv) Mr. Rajesh Mundhra – Director

v) Mr. Navneet Bagri - CFO

vi) Mrs. Sonali Khanna Chaubey- Company Secretary

(b) Transactions with the related parties during the year:  Amount in `

Remuneration Loans & Advances given)

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Key Management Personnel 7,588,527 7,588,527 Nil Nil

Relative of KMP Nil Nil Nil Nil

Closing Balance 617,191 617,191 Nil Nil

(ii) Subsidiary Companies 

(a) (Ownership Interest – 100%)

(b) Nature of Transactionl

45

Amount in ₹

 Loan Given Loan Taken Interest Payable
Receivable Interest 

Subsidiary Company 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Allied Maritime & Infra 
Engineering Private Ltd 40,417 5,160 -             5,410 3,871   

ARCL Petrochemicals Limited 223,900 9,130 597,050           15,875 4,575     17,901  

Ocilim Advisory Services Private Ltd. 67,867 4,400            10,888 4,265   

Wide Range Merchants Private Ltd. 70,750 6,500            12,766 5,540   

Nocnex Chemicals Private Ltd. 71,167 4,000              8,776 2,491   

Yocnex Chemicals Private Ltd. 69,067 4,800              8,707 2,571   

Suksess Chemicals Private Ltd. 12,271,167 4,000 12,900,000                    -   2,491     96,161  

TOTAL            12,814,335 37,990   13,497,050                    -            62,422     25,804   114,062             -   

(c) Closing Balance Amount in ₹
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
Loans Given             13,063,860 249,525
Interest Receivable                    96,714 34,292
Loans Taken             13,497,050 - 
Interest Payable                  114,062 - 
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30. Employee Benefits:

a) Present Value of Obligations for Defined Benefits
Leave Leave Gratuity Gratuity

Encashment  Encashment  (Funded)  (Funded)
2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020

` ` ` `

As at the beginning of the year 2,386,374 1,804,663 17,148,746 13,428,945
Current Service Cost 294430 146,726 1034244 839,502
Interest Cost 167046 126,326 1200412 940,026
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 228947 386,775 1883716 2,770,588
Benefits paid (95903) (78,116) (860021) (830,315)
As at the end of year 2,980,894 2,386,374 20,407,097 17,148,746

b) Fair Value of Planned Assets:
Leave Leave Gratuity Gratuity

Encashment  Encashment  (Funded)  (Funded)
2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020

` ` ` `

As at the beginning of the year  0  0
Expected return on plan assets  0  0
Contribution by Employer 95,903 78,116 860,021 830,315
(Benefits Paid) (95,903) (78,116) (860,021) (830,315)
As at the end of the year  0  0

c) Reconciliation of Present Value of defined benefits Obligation in “a” above and fair value of Plan assets in above:
Leave Leave Gratuity Gratuity

Encashment  Encashment  (Funded)  (Funded)
2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020

` ` ` `

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year               2,980,894  2,386,374    20,407,097   17,148,746 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year -  -   -                      -   
Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet 2,980,894   2,386,374    20,407,097   17,148,746 

d) Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate per annum compound 7.00% 7.00%
Rate of increase in salaries 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Notes
(a) The Estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 

factors such as supply and demand in employment market. 
(b) Discount rate is based upon the market yields available on Government Bonds at the accounting date with that of liabilities.
e) Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate, Salary escalation rate, and 
withdrawal rate. The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the 
end of the reporting period while holding all other assumptions constant. The change in the present value of Defined Benefit Obligation for a 
change of 100 Basis Points from the assumed assumption is given below.

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020
 (Leave Encashment) (Gratuity)

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base) 2,980,894 20,407,097
Discount rate (-/+ 1%) 3,184,874 2,799,902 21,582,653 19,337,660
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 7% 6% 6% 5%
Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 2,795,001 3,186,910 19,308,419 21,594,151
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 6% 7% 5% 6%
Withdrawal Rates (- / + 50%) 2,954,853 3,004,309 20,300,282 20,505,167
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 1% 1% 0% 1%

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

46



ARCL Organics Limited

31.The Company has not received full information from vendors regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 (MSMED ACT); hence disclosure relating to the amount unpaid at year-end together with interest paid/payable have been given 
based on the information so far available with the Company / identified by the Company management.

32. Expenditure in Foreign Currency:  Amount in ̀

2020-2021 2019-2020

Travelling NIL 808,063

Commission NIL NIL

Business Development Expenses 5,78,598 NIL

33. Earnings in Foreign Currency  Amount in ̀

2020-2021 2019-2020

Value of Exports on FOB basis 310,028,255 228,405,613

Brokerage and Commission received NIL NIL

34. CIF Value of imports  Amount in `

2020-2021 2019-2020

Raw Materials 283,57,838 50,786,948

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

35. Contingent Liabilities 36. Capital Management

a)   Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt (In lakhs): The Company's objective when managing capital (defined as net 
debt and equity) are to safeguard the Company's ability to • Demand under Central Excise act, 1944 and Finance act, 1944 
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to for the period from 2003-04, against which appeal was filed 
shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders while protecting before Commissioner appeal- Rs. 17.68 lakhs
and strengthening the balance sheet through the appropriate 

• The case of excise pending in Tribunal involving an amount of Rs. balance of debt and equity funding. The Company manages its 
396.34 lakhs against which Rs. 74.34 lakhs paid towards security capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to 
deposit. economic conditions and strategic objectives of the Company. The 

Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to • Cases of sales tax amounting to Rs. 115.42 lakhs are pending 
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-before Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Tax and Rs. 137.04 
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure lakhs from 2005-06 before Joint Commissioner of sales tax.
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would 

• In Income tax, an appeal has been filed by the department against permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There 
relief granted by the income tax Appellate Tribunal which is have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-
pending in High Court, Calcutta-Rs. 640.78 lakhs for 1988-98. bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 
And Rs 316.97 lakhs case is pending before Commissioner 

37. The charge of dues of IDBI Bank now taken over by Stressed (Appeal) for the period.
Assets Stabilization Fund (SASF) and WBIDCL has not yet been 

• The position of both the units (HideRoad & Budge Budge) has filed in connection with the satisfaction of charge on ROC portal, 
been handed over back to KOPT along with the stocks which are despite full and final payment made as per the scheme approved 
having recoverable value more than the rent payable, Since the by the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court. 
matter is subjudice we have ignored the value of recoverable from 

Since SASF has failed to issue NOC as stipulated in the scheme, the company has provided for rent payable.
the company has filed a petition before the Hon’ble Calcutta High 

• On Account of LC and Bank Guarantee Rs 7,81,55,242/- and Court on the ground of breach of terms and conditions of the 
45,00,000/- respectively. scheme. The matter is pending before Hon’ble Calcutta High 

b) Capital and other commitments:  Rs. Nil (Previous Year - Rs. Nil) Court. The matter for NOC with WBIDCL is being followed.
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38. Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:  Amount in ̀

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020 

Debt 93,066,332 174,461,199

Cash and Bank balance 13,749,779 9,548,897

Net Debt 79,316,553 164,912,302

Total Equity 314,975,815 243,951,549

Net debt to Equity ratio/ Gearing Ratio                         0.25                       0.68 
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Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management 

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, Ageing analysis, Credit limits and analysis of 

trade receivables, financial assets Credit analysis credit-worthiness

measured at amortised cost.  

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other liabilities. Cash Flow forecasts Timely evaluation of Credit 
facilities and regularly payment 
interest liabilities

Market Risk – foreign exchange Recognised financial assets Cash Flow forecasts Monitoring of currency 
and liabilities not denominated in exchange rate movement.
 INR

Market Risk – interest rate Long Term Borrowings/Liabilities ... Monitoring of interest rate 
movements

Market Risk – security prices Investment in Securities ... Portfolio Management

Financial Assets Measured at  Amortized Cost       Current   Non Current

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Trade receivables          228,790,454         168,136,677                    -                      -   

Cash and cash    equivalents             13,749,779              9,548,897                    -                      -   

Other Bank Balances             62,755,998           62,088,078                    -                      -   

Loans               5,219,255                 283,817                    -                      -   

Other Financial Assets                  281,500                 265,000      3,258,363     3,258,363 

Measured at fair value through OCI

Investments                             -                              -      12,347,224   12,313,522 

Total Financial Assets          310,796,987         240,322,469   15,605,587   15,571,885 

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Borrowings             63,557,183           57,498,805    21,628,739   57,376,430 

Trade payables          107,612,705         108,842,971                    -                      -   

Other financial liabilities             21,172,864           18,956,927    31,343,659   34,000,000 

Total Financial Liabilities          192,342,753         185,298,703   52,972,398   91,376,430 

40. Balance confirmations are awaited in few cases in respect of trade procedures, which are reviewed by the Audit Committee and 
receivables and trade payables. In the opinion of the management, it approved by the Board from time to time. These procedures are 
is unlikely that there will be any major reconciliation difference with reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risks by way 
material impact on the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities of a properly defined framework. The Company does not enter into 
as reflected in these financial statements derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. The 

following table explains the sources of risk and how the entity 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
manages the risk in its financial statements. The management 

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of risks reviews the status of all principal risks with a significant potential 
including liquidity risk, credit risk, and market risk. The Company impact. Additionally, the Audit Committee carried out focused risk 
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects of these risks by reviews of its Plant and divisions. These reviews included an analysis 
managing them through a structured process of identification, of both the principal risks and the controls, monitoring, and assurance 
assessment, and prioritization of risks followed by coordinated efforts processes established to mitigate those risks to acceptable levels. As 
to monitor, minimize and mitigate the impact of such risks on its a result of these reviews, several actions were identified to continue to 
financial performance and capital. For this purpose, the Company improve internal controls and the management of risk.
has laid comprehensive risk assessment and minimization/mitigation 

39. Disclosure on Financial Instruments (a) Financial assets and liabilities

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial The following table presents the carrying value and fair value of each 
instruments for the Company and provides additional information on category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021 and 
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments. March 31, 2020

 Amount in `



ARCL Organics Limited

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2021

49

a. Credit Risk 42.Expenditure on Research and Development

Credit Risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its During this year company incurred Rs 97,008/- for the purchase of 
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract Research and Development equipment in Fixed Assets. And 
leading to financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk incurred expenses disclose in Note 26 of Rs 9,88,363/-.
from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables and 43.Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic 
deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including on COVID-19.
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange 

The vigorous spread of COVID - 19 pandemic including the more transactions, and other financial instruments. The company 
lethal second wave continues to affect the businesses across generally doesn’t have collateral.
India and the operations of the Company. Despite intermittent 

Customer credit risk is managed by business through the disruptions during the year in regular operations of the Company 
company’s established policy, procedures, and controls relating due to COVID - 19 pandemic, requiring lockdown, restrictive 
to customer credit risk management. The credit quality of each measures & other emergency measures, resulting in frequent 
customer is assessed and credit limits are defined in accordance interruption of working, the Company has been able to perform 
with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and reasonably during the year ended 31st March 2021.
security deposits are regularly monitored.

Besides above, the 'Amphan' cyclone in the month of May, in the 
The aging of Trade receivables i.e. receivables which are post due state of West Bengal affected the operations of the plants of the 
(net of allowances/provisions) are given below: Company, which also impacted the performance during the year.  

The actual impact of COVID-19’s impact would be recognized  Amount in `
prospectively at a later date through monitoring the prevalent 

Age of receivables 2020-21 2019-20
future economic conditions its impact.

Less than six months 164,406,722 117,682,765
44.The previous year’s figures (given in parenthesis in some cases) 

More than six months 64,383,732 50,453,912 have been arranged/regrouped wherever considered necessary.

b. The company's objective is to at all times maintain the optimum 
level of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirement at all 
times. The current committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet 
its short to medium-term expansion needs and hence evaluate the 
concentration of risk with respect to liquidity as low. The Company 
monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it 
has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining 
headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all 
times so that the Company does not breach borrowing limits or 
covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities.

The company primarily depends on its own funds and has a low 
level of borrowing.

c. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of 
financial instruments may fluctuate because of changes in market 
conditions. Market risk broadly comprises three types of risks 
namely currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk (for 
commodities or equity instruments).

(i) Foreign Exchange Risk - The company operates only in India and 
has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity 
derivative contracts. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure 
to market risk.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk –As a majority of the financial assets and 
liabilities of the Company are fixed interest-bearing instruments, 
the Company’s net exposure to interest risk is negligible. 

(iii) Security Price Risk –. The company’s exposure to securities price 
risk arises from investments held by the company and classified in 
the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or fair value 
through Profit or Loss. 

To manage the price risk arising from investments, the company 
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of a portfolio is done in 
accordance with the directions of the Board.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial 
StatementsARCL ORGANICS LIMITED
7. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

preparation of these consolidated financial statements in terms of Opinion
the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the 
statements of ARCL Organics Limited(hereinafter referred to as consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding performance including other comprehensive income, 
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) consolidated cash flows and statement of changes in equity of the 
comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
2021, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
other comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rules 
Statement, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for issued thereunder.  The respective Board of Directors of the 
the year then ended and notes to the financial statements companies included in the Group are responsible for 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
explanatory information(herein after referred to as “Consolidated the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group 
Financial Statements”). and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of 
the subsidiaries referred to in the Other Matters paragraph, the adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
consolidated  state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2021, of which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated profit (including Other Comprehensive Loss), consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding 
consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for Company, as aforesaid.
the year ended on that date. 8. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective 

Basis for Opinion Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a 2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do soconsolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 

independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics 9. The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and we the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with process of the Group.
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.  We believe that the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to Financial Statements
provide a basis for our opinion.

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
Other Information whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free 
3. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

preparation of the other information. The other information issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
comprises the information included in the Management assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
Board Report, but does not include the consolidated financial material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The aforesaid from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
documents are expected to be made available to us after the date the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
of this auditor’s report the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

consolidated financial statements.4. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of 11. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
assurance conclusion thereon. professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 5. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information   • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 6. When we read the aforesaid documents, if we conclude that there 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, communicate the matters to those charged with governance.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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or the override of internal control. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

• Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the 14. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in (a) We have sought and obtained all the information and 
the circumstances.  Under Section 143(3) (i) of the Companies explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
on whether the Group which are companies incorporated in consolidated financial statements.
India have adequate internal financial controls system in place (b) In our opinion proper books of accounts as required by law 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related examination of those books and the reports of the other 
disclosures made by management. auditors.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the (c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by 
on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures consolidated financial statements.
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures (d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may Rules issued thereunder. 
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the directors of the Holding Company as on 31st March, 2021 

consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent Company and the reports of the other statutory auditors of its 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the Group’s 
achieves fair presentation. companies is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from being 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
financial information of the entities or business activities within (f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of 
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”.
and performance of the audit of the financial statements of 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the such entities included in the consolidatedfinancial statements 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements of of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: included in the consolidated financial statements, which have 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain 
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
Holding Company to its directors during the year is in the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.for our audit opinion.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the 12. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
best of our information and according to the explanations knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 
given to us:influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative 

factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating              i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any of pending litigations on the consolidated financial position 
identified misstatements in the financial statements. of the Group– Refer Note 35 to the consolidated financial 

statements.Other Matters
ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses 13. We did not audit the financial statements of seven subsidiaries 

on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.included in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial 
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 221.46 lakhs as at March 31, iii. There were no amounts which were required to be 
2021, total revenues of Rs. 101.82 lakhs, total net profit/ (Loss) transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund 
after tax of Rs. 72.53 lakhs and total comprehensive loss of Rs. by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies.
72.53 lakhs for the year ended on that date as considered in the 
financial statements. These financial statements have been 

For JSUS & Associates
audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us 

Chartered Accountantsby the Management and our opinion on these consolidated 
Firm Registration No : 329784Efinancial statements, in so far as it relates to the amount and 

disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries is based 
solely on the reports of other auditors. (Adrish Roy)
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and Place : Kolkata Partner
our report on other legal and regulatory requirements below are 

Date : 08.06.2021 Membership No. 055826
not modified in respect of above matters.

UDIN- 21055826AAAAAN3183
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ANNEXURE- A: TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of  ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 14(f) of the Auditors’ Report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of Sub reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 
–section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) statement for external purposes in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial 1. We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and reporting of ARCL ORGANICS LIMITED(hereinafter referred to as 
procedures that “the Holding Company”) andits subsidiaries (the Holding Company 
1) pertain to the maintenance of the records that, in reasonable and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which are 

detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and companies incorporated in India as of 31st March 2021 in conjunction 
dispositions of the assets of the company; with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 

Company for the year ended on that date. 2) provide reasonable assurance that the transactions are 
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
statement in accordance with generally accepted 2. The respective Board of Directors of the of the Holding Company 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditure of and its subsidiary companies,  are responsible for establishing 
the company are being made only in accordance with and maintaining internal financial control based on the internal 
authorization of management and directors of company; and control over financial reporting criteria established by the 

3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or respective companies considering the essential components of 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance 
material effect on the financial statement.Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Control over Financial 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were Reporting
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct 7. Because of inherent limitation of internal financial control over 
of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and improper management override of controls, material 
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of misstatements due to errors or fraud may occur and not be 
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable detected. Also, projections of any evaluations of the internal 
financial information, as required under the Act. financial control over financial reporting to future periods are 

Auditors’ Responsibility subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial 
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its 
procedures may deteriorate.subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Opinion
“Guidance Note” and the Standard on Auditing, issued by ICAI 8. In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the 
and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the 
the extent applicable. Those Standards and the Guidance Note other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies  have, in all 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material respect, an adequate internal financial controls system 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over 
established and maintained and if such controls operated financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 
effectively in all material respects. 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting 

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit criteria established by the respective companies considering the 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial 
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting Reporting, issued by ICAI.
includes obtaining an understanding of internal financial control Other Matters
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 9. Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to seven 
assessed risk. The procedure selected depends on the auditor’s subsidiary company is based solely on the corresponding reports 
judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material of the auditors of such companies.
misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or 
error. For JSUS & Associates

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the Chartered Accountants
audit evidence obtained by the other auditors of the subsidiary 

Firm Registration No : 329784Ecompanies, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other 
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls (Adrish Roy)
system over financial reporting the Company and its subsidiary Place : Kolkata Partner
companies. Date : 08.06.2021 Membership No. 055826

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting
UDIN- 21055826AAAAAN3183

6. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a 
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2021  Amount in ` 
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Note No.  As on 31.03.2021   As on 31.03.2020 

Non-current assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2  202,458,520  210,116,572 
Right of Use 2  2,053,022  -   
Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 3  121,524  87,822 
(ii) Other financial Assets 4  3,258,363  3,258,363 
(iii) Loans 10  -    -   
Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 5  -    4,149,951 
Total Non - Current Assets  207,891,429  217,612,708 

Current assets 
Inventories 6  62,673,714  57,277,183 
Financial Assets 

   (i)   Trade receivables 7  228,977,596  168,959,026 
   (ii)  Cash and cash equivalents 8  24,758,255  10,682,424 
   (iii)  Other Bank Balances 9  62,755,998  62,088,078 
   (iv)  Loans 10  5,204,241  -   
   (v) Other Financial Assets 4  281,500  265,000 
Current Tax Assets 11  13,006,769  7,561,864 
Other current assets 12  20,468,008  21,119,973 
Total Current Assets  418,126,082  327,953,548 

Total Assets  626,017,511  545,566,256 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
Equity Share capital 13  80,000,000  80,000,000 
Other Equity 14  241,693,620  163,416,162 
Total equity  321,693,620  243,416,162 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

   (i) Borrowings 15  20,606,287  57,376,430 
   (ii) Other financial liabilities 16  31,343,659  34,000,000 
Provisions 17  21,105,168  17,567,619 
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5  15,545,651  -   
Total non-current liabilities  88,600,765  108,944,049 
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities

   (i)  Borrowings 15  63,557,183  57,498,805 
   (ii)  Trade payables 18
Outstanding dues to Micro and Small enterprises  342,200  601,346 
Outstanding dues to parties other than  Micro and Small enterprises  107,443,105  108,241,624 

   (iii) Other financial liabilities 16  21,172,864  19,545,141 
Provisions 17  6,398,971  4,919,056 
Other current liabilities 19  16,808,802  2,400,073 
Total Current Liabilities  215,723,126  193,206,045 

Total liabilities  304,323,891  302,150,094 

Total Equity & Liabilities  626,017,511  545,566,256 
Significant accounting policies 1   
Additional notes to financial statements 27-45
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
In terms of our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For JSUS & Associates Suraj Ratan Mundhra Mukesh Mundhra
Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director
(Firm registration no. 329784E)  DIN-00681223  DIN-00658602

 
Adrish Roy Navneet Bagri Sonali Chaubey
Partner Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  
(Membership no. 055826) (Membership no. A42299) 
Place: Kolkata
Date:  08/06/2021 
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Notes As on As on
31.03.2021  31.03.2020

I. Revenue from operations 20  866,713,217  707,853,032 

II. Other income 21  24,136,101  11,266,299 

III. Total Revenue (I + II)  890,849,319  719,119,331 

IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 22  575,446,519  465,681,767 

Purchase of stock-in-trade

"Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods" 23  (6,599,411)  1,957,220 

Employee benefit expense 24  65,817,321  60,366,962 

Finance costs 25  19,086,637  30,368,204 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2  14,854,732  14,253,368 

Other expenses 26  109,984,293  113,196,366 

Total expenses  778,590,091  685,823,887 

V. Profit before tax (III - IV)  112,259,228  33,295,444 

Income tax expenses

 - Current tax  17,487,414  4,532,882 

 - MAT Credit  -5,280,207 

 - Deferred tax  19,695,602  3,520,641 

Total tax expense  31,902,809  8,053,523 

Profit after tax  80,356,419  25,241,921 

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss  -   

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

 (i) Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans  (2,112,663)  (3,157,363)

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss  33,702  (123,164)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  (2,078,961)  (3,280,527) 

Total comprehensive income for the year  78,277,458  21,961,394 

"Earnings per equity share attributable to owners of ARCL Organics Limited"

Basic earnings per share  10.04  3.16 

 Diluted earnings per share  10.04  3.16 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1

Additional notes to financial statements 27-45

In terms of our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board

For JSUS & Associates Suraj Ratan Mundhra Mukesh Mundhra

Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director

(Firm registration no. 329784E)  DIN-00681223  DIN-00658602

 

Adrish Roy Navneet Bagri Sonali Chaubey

Partner Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  
(Membership no. 055826) (Membership no. A42299) 
Place: Kolkata
Date:  08/06/2021 



A. Equity Share Capital

Notes  Amount in ` 

As at 1 April 2019  80,000,000 

Changes in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2020 13  80,000,000 

Changes in equity share capital

As at 31 March 2021  80,000,000 

ARCL Organics Limited

Statement of Consolidated Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
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B. Consolidated Other Equity Amount in `  

     Other Comprehensive Income
Notes

 Securities  Cap  Retained Remeasurements Fair  Total 
premium  reserve   earnings  of the defined valuation other 
reserve  benefit plans  Instrument of Equity equity 

Balance at 31 March 2019  112,250,000  3,380  28,758,875  515,165  (72,652)  141,454,768 

Profit for the year  25,241,921  25,241,921 

Other comprehensive income  (3,157,363)  (123,164)  (3,280,527)

Adjustments  -   

Total comprehensive income for the year 14  -    -    25,241,921  (3,157,363)  (123,164)  21,961,394 

Balance at 31 March 2020  112,250,000  3,380  54,000,796  (2,642,198)  (195,816)  163,416,162 

Profit for the year  80,356,419  80,356,419 

Other comprehensive income  (2,112,663)  33,702  (2,078,961)

Total comprehensive income for the year  -    80,356,419  (2,112,663)  33,702  78,277,458 

Balance at 31 March 2021  112,250,000  3,380  134,357,215  (4,754,861)  (162,114)  241,693,620 
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As on As on
 31.03.2021   31.03.2020

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Net profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss  112,259,228  33,295,444 
Adjustments for :
Depreciation on Tangible Assets  14,854,732  14,253,368 
Interest Income  (3,442,125)  (4,775,980)
Interest Expense  12,584,865  21,618,786 
Acturial Gain /loss transfeed to OCI  (2,078,961)  (3,280,527) 

 21,918,511  27,815,647 
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes  134,177,738  61,111,091 

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables  (1,057,665)  35,352,714 
Increase / (Decrease) in  Other Current Liabilities  14,408,729  (16,177,275) 
Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions  1,479,915  193,119 
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Provisions  3,537,549  3,222,932 
Increase / (Decrease) in  Other Current financial Liabilities  1,627,723  19,545,141 
Increase / (Decrease) in  Other Non Current financial Liabilities  (2,656,341)  -   
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Bank balances  (667,920)  1,719,908 
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade receivables  (60,018,570)  (435,504) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories (5,396,531)  (6,474,468) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Loans and Advances  (5,204,241)  8,491 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets  (7,000,147)  12,533,314 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Financial Assets  (16,500)  - 
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current financial Assets  -    (159,443) 
(Increase) / Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances  -    (60,963,999)  3,414,717  52,743,646 
Cash generated from operations  73,213,739  113,854,737 
Taxes paid (Net of refunds)  10,000,000  661,667 
Net cash Generated/(used) from operating activities (A)  63,213,739  113,193,070 

`B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of fixed assets  (11,077,133)  (8,124,156) 
Disposal  of Fixed Assets  1,827,432  172,167 
Investments in Subsidiaries  (33,702)  123,164 
Interest Received  3,442,125  4,775,980 
Net cash from investing activities (B)  (5,841,279)  (3,052,845) 

C. Cash flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from short - term borrowings  6,058,378  (101,825,352) 
Proceeds/(Repayment) from long - term borrowings  (36,770,143)  16,268,663 
Interest Paid  (12,584,865) (43,296,630)  (21,618,786)  (107,175,476) 
Net cash used for  financing activities (C )  (43,296,630)  (107,175,476) 

Net Increase/(decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  14,075,831  2,964,749 

Cash and Cash equivalent at the beginning of the year  10,682,424  7,717,675 
Cash and Cash equivalent at the end of the year  24,758,255  10,682,424 

Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents - Increase/(Decrease)  (14,075,831)  (2,964,749)  

 
This is the Cash Flow Statement referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board

For JSUS & Associates Suraj Ratan Mundhra Mukesh Mundhra
Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director
(Firm registration no. 329784E)  DIN-00681223  DIN-00658602

 
Adrish Roy Navneet Bagri Sonali Chaubey
Partner Chief Financial Officer  Company Secretary  
(Membership no. 055826) (Membership no. A42299) 
Place: Kolkata
Date:  08/06/2021 
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Note 1 Corporate Information, Significant Accounting Policies The financial statements have been prepared under the 
and Significant Accounting Judgements, Estimates and historical cost convention with the exception of certain assets 
Assumptions and liabilities that are required to be carried at fair value by Ind 

AS. Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset A. Corporate information 
or paid to transfer of liabilities in an orderly transaction between 

ARCL Organics Ltd was incorporated on 8th September 1992. It market participants at the measurement date.
is a public limited company having its registered office at Rampur, 

Accounting policies are consistently applied except where a Budge Budge Trunk Road, Kolkata- 700141, West Bengal. The 
newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and 
to an existing accounting standard requires a change in selling of chemical based product, Resins, Additives, Hardeners 
accounting policy hitherto in use. and specialized One-Shot Resins. Over the years, ARCL has 

broadened its product range and is having an integrated & The Ind AS financial statements are presented in INR which is the 
computerized fully automated petrochemical complex. The Company's functional and presentation currency and all values 
Company caters to both domestic and export market. are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when otherwise 

indicated. Accounting policies have been consistently applied Today along with a wide range of Resins & Additives, Hardeners 
except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially and specialized One-Shot Resins, ARCL has the expertise to 
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires offer tailor-made solutions as per its client’s requirements.
a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The financial statements of the Group comprise of the financial 
2. Principles of Consolidationstatements of the parent Company and its seven wholly owned 

subsidiaries (the Company and its subsidiaries referred to as the The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial 
“Group”). The Group is principally engaged in the business of real statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31st March 
estate development financing, trading and other activities. 2021.

These consolidated financial statements (”the financial Subsidiaries
statements”) of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. 
were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution of the The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or 
Board of Directors on 08th June , 2021. has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
The Company, its subsidiaries (jointly referred to as the ‘Group’ and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to 
herein under) considered in these consolidated financial direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully 
statements are: consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the 

Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the control Subsidiaries Country of Principle 2020-21 2019-20
ceases. The acquisition method of accounting is used to account Incorporation Activities
for business combination by the Group. The Group combines the 

Allied Maritime & India Infrastructural 99.99% 99.99%
separate financial statements of the parent and its subsidiaries Infra Engineering Facilities
line by line adding together like items of assets, liabilities, Private Ltd  
Contingent liability, equity, income and expenses. Intercompany 

ARCL Petrochemicals India Trading in 99.99% 99.99%
transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions Limited Petro Chemical 
between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are Products
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an 

Ocilim Advisory India Corporate 99.99% 99.99%
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of Services Private Ltd. Service
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary and 

Wide Range Trading In 99.99% 99.99% practicable to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by 
Merchants Private Ltd. India  chemicals

the Group. Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of 
Nocnex Chemicals India Trading In 99.99% 99.99% subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated statement 
Private Ltd.  chemicals of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity 
Yocnex Chemicals India Trading In 99.99% 99.99% and balance sheet, respectively.
Private Ltd.  chemicals

The financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting 
Suksess Chemicals India Trading In 99.99% 99.99% policies for like transactions and other events in similar 
Private Ltd.  chemicals

circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting 
B. Significant Accounting Policies policies other than those adopted in the  financial statements for 

like transactions and events in similar circumstances, The significant accounting policies applied by the group in the 
appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s preparation of its consolidated financial statements are listed 
separate financial statements in preparing the financial below. Such accounting policies have been applied consistently 
statements to ensure  conformity with the Group’s accounting to all the periods presented in these consolidated financial 
policies, wherever necessary and practicable.statements unless otherwise indicated.

Notes to the financial statements represent notes involving items 1. Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements 
which are considered material and are accordingly disclosed. 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been Materiality for the purpose is assessed in relation to the 
prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind information contained in the financial statements. Further, 
AS), as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian statements of the subsidiary and/or a parent having no bearing 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other relevant on the true and fair view of the financial statements has not been 
provisions of the act. disclosed in these financial statements.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. Use of estimates The Company has identified twelve months as its operating 
cycle.The preparation of the Financial Statements in conformity with 

IND AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments 5. Property, Plant and equipment (PPE)
and assumptions. These estimates, judgment and assumptions Property, plant and equipment are carried at the cost of 
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation. Costs 
amount of Assets and Liabilities and disclosure of contingent directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the 
Liabilities on the date of the Financial Statements and reported property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by 
amounts of revenues and expenses for the year. management.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an Freehold land is carried at its historical cost. Historical cost 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition 
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and of items.
future periods are affected.

Any subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount 
Key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the date of the or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is 
financial statements, which may cause a material adjustment to probable that future economic benefits associated with the item 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured 
financial year, is in respect of impairment of investments, useful reliably.All other repairs and maintenance are recognized in profit 
lives of property, plant and equipment, valuation of deferred tax or loss as incurred.
assets, provisions and contingent liabilities and fair value 

The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its measurement of financial instruments have been discussed 
purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any below. Key source of estimation of uncertainty in respect of 
import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently revenue recognition and employee benefits have been 
recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable discussed in their respective policies.
expenditure on making the assets ready for its intended use, 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment other incidental expenses and interest on borrowings attributable 
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the assets is 
equipment at the end of each reporting period. This ready for its intended use.
reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in 6. Depreciation
future periods.

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other 
Valuation of deferred tax assets amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. 
The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax Depreciation on tangible assets has been provided on the 
assets at the end of each year. straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 

II to the Companies Act, 2013. The assets residual values, useful 4. Current and Non-current Classification
life and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted if 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated 

7. Impairment of Non-Financial Assetsas current when it is:
The management periodically assesses using external and  - Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in 
internal sources, whether there is an indication that both tangible normal operating cycle
and intangible asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is 

 - Held primarily for the purpose of trading recognized wherever the carrying value of an asset exceeds its 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss for an asset is reversed  - Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting 
if, and only if, the reversal can be related objectively to an event period, or
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being 
8. Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint venturesexchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months 

after the reporting period Investments in subsidiaries are accounted at cost in the 
standalone financial statements and the same has been knocked All other assets are classified as non-current. 
off in the consolidated financial statements.

A liability is current when:
9. Cash and bank balances

 - It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
Cash and bank balances consist of:

 - It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
(i) Cash and cash equivalents

 - It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting 
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprises of period, or 
cash in hand and at bank, bank deposits and also short term 

 - There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, 
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period which is subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. These balances with banks are unrestricted for withdrawal 

and usage.Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current 
assets and liabilities. (ii) Other bank balances

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets These include balances and deposits with banks that are 
for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. restricted for withdrawal and usage.

58

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



ARCL Organics Limited

10. Inventories Measurement of Fair Values

Inventories are valued at cost or net realizable value, whichever Certain accounting policies and disclosures of the Company 
is lower. Cost of inventories includes all the cost that are incurred require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and 
in bringing the inventories to their present condition and location. non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary established control framework with respect to the measurement 
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and of fair values.
the estimated cost necessary to make the sale. Trade Payables

11. Financial Instruments These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services 
Financial Asset Initial Recognition provided to the company prior to the end of financial year which 

are unpaid. These amounts are secured and unsecured. Trade Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the 
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless company's statement of financial position when the company 
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Also, the segregation has been made for the micro, small and The company determines the classification of its financial assets 
medium enterprises creditors.and liabilities at initial recognition.
Fair Values are categorized into different levels in a fair value Subsequent Measurement
hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 

The Subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on follows:
their classification which is as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
Financial Asset at Fair value through Profit or Loss assets or liabilities

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss include Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that 
financial assets held for sale in the near term and those are observable for the asset            or liability, either directly (i.e. 
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
loss.

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
Financial Asset measured at Amortized Cost observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Loans, receivables and cash are non-derivative financial assets When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the 
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an company uses observable market data as far   as possible. If the 
active market. Trade receivables do not carry any interest and inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall 
are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate into a different level of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value 
allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts based on the measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the 
ageing of the receivables balance and historical experience. fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to 
Individual trade receivables are written off when management the entire measurement.
deems them not to be collectible.

12. Borrowing
Financial Asset at Fair value through OCI

Borrowings are recognized at fair value. They are classified as 
All equity investments, except investments in subsidiaries falling current liabilities unless the Group has the right to defer the 
within the scope of Ind AS 109, are measured at fair value settlement of the liability for atleast 12 months after the reporting 
through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI). If the company period. Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when 
decides to designate an equity instrument at fair value through the obligations is discharged, cancelled or expired.
OCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding 

13. Provisions and Contingent Liabilitiesdividends, are recognized in the OCI.
The Group recognizes a provision when there is a present Financial Asset Derecognition
obligation as a result of past event that probably requires an out 

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the flow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the assets expire or it amount of obligation. A disclosure for a Contingent Liability is 
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and made when there is a possible obligation from a past event but 
rewards of ownership of the asset. Upon derecognition of equity their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
instruments designated at fair value through OCI, the associated occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
fair value changes of that equity instrument is transferred from within the control of the company
OCI to Retained Earnings.

14. Revenue Recognition
Financial Liabilities – Initial recognition and measurement

In accordance with Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with 
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as customers”, Revenue from contracts with customers is 
financial liabilities at amortized cost, loans and borrowings, or as recognized on transfer of control of promised goods or services 
payables, as appropriate. to a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to 

which the Company is expected to be entitled to in exchange for Subsequent Measurement
those goods or services.

The Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on 
(i) Sale of Goodstheir classification which is as follows:

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the Interest bearing borrowings, trade payables and other payables 
Group satisfies the performance obligation in accordance issued by the company are subsequently measured at amortized 
with the provisions of contract with customer. This is cost. 
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achieved when control of the product has been transferred 17. Earnings per Share
to the customer, which is generally determined when title, Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the profit for 
ownership, risk of obsolesce and loss pass to the customer the year attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by the 
and Group has present right to payment. The Group collects weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.
goods and services tax (GST) on behalf of the government 

18. Cash Flowand, therefore, these are not economic benefits flowing to 
the Group. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. The investing and financing activities in cash flow statement do 

(ii) Interest Income not have a direct impact on current cash flows although they do 
affect the capital and asset structure of an entity. The company Interest Income is recognized based on time proportion 
has disclosed these transactions, to the extent, material in notes basis considering the amount outstanding and the rate 
to cash flow statement.applicable. Interest Income is included in the Other Income 

in the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss. 19. Segment Reporting

15 Income Tax The Company has identified that its operating activity is a single 
primary business segment. Accordingly, whole of India has been (I) Current Income Tax
considered as one geographical segment. Hence, segment Current Income Tax is measured at the amount expected to 
reporting is not applicable.be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Income 

Tax Act, 1961. 20. Foreign Currencies

(ii) Deferred Tax Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the 
Company at the functional currency spot rates (i.e. INR) at the Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach 
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are and liabilities and their carrying amount for the 
translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the financialreporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred 
reporting date.Tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable 

that taxable profit will be available against which the Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement 
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of of transactions in foreign currencies and from the translation of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized. monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
Current and deferred tax is recognized in the statement of at year end exchange rates are generally recognized in 
Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
items recognized in the other comprehensive income or 

21. Research and Developmentdirectly in equity.

16. Employee benefits Research and Development expenditures of revenue nature are 
charged to Profit & Loss Account, while capital expenditure is The present value of the defined benefit obligations depends on 
added to the cost of fixed assets in the year in which these are a number of factors that are determined on a n actuarial basis 
incurred.using a number of assumptions

22. Lease(i) Short-term obligations

a. Where the Company is the lesseeLiabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary 
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability 
months after the end of the period in which the employees at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is 
render the related service are recognized in respect of initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of 
employees services upto the end of reporting and are the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or 
measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs 
liabilities are settled. incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the 

(ii) Long term obligations underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on 
which it is located, less any lease incentives received.The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave that are not 

expected to be settled wholly within 12 months are The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the 
measured at the present value of expected future payments straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier 
to be made in respect of services made by employees upto of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of 
the end of the reporting period. The benefits are discounted the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets 
using the government securities at the end of reporting are determined on the same basis as those of property and 
period. equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically 

reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-(iii) Post employment obligations - Gratuity
measurements of the lease liability.

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in 
respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the 
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
period less the fair value of the plan assets. The present discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that 
value of the obligation is determined by discounting the rate cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental 
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market borrowing rate.
yields at the end of the reporting period on government 

Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate as 
bonds that have the term approximating to the terms of the 

the discount rate.
related obligations.
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease • Specified format for ageing schedule of trade receivables, 
liability comprise the following: trade payables, capital work-in-progress and intangible asset 

under development. Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
• If a company has not used funds for the specific purpose for Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, 

which it was borrowed from banks and financial institutions, initially measured using the index or rate as at the 
then disclosure of details of where it has been used. commencement date;

• Specific disclosure under ‘additional regulatory requirement’ Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value 
such as compliance with approved schemes of guarantee; and
arrangements, compliance with number of layers of 

The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is companies, title deeds of immovable property not held in 
reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional name of company, loans and advances to promoters, 
renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise directors, key managerial personnel (KMP) and related 
an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease parties, details of benami property held etc. 
unless the company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

Statement of profit and loss: 
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

• Additional disclosures relating to Corporate Social 
The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets Responsibility (CSR), undisclosed income and crypto or 
and lease liabilities for short-term leases of real estate properties virtual currency specified under the head ‘additional 
that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises information’ in the notes forming part of the standalone 
the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense financial statements. 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The amendments are extensive and the Company will evaluate 
b. Where the Company is the lessor the same to give effect to them as required by law.

Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. 
Lease income is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on 
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Costs, including 
depreciation are recognised as an expense in the statement of 
Profit &Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage 
costs, etc. are recognised immediately in the statement of Profit 
&Loss.

Assets given under a finance lease are recognised as a 
receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. 
Lease income is recognised over the period of the lease so as to 
yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease. 
Initial direct costs relating to assets given on finance leases are 
charged to Statement of Profit and Loss.

23. Operating Segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the 
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker 
(CODM). The CODM who is responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been 
identified as the Board of Directors of the Company.

24. Recent Pronouncement

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") 
through a notification, amended Schedule III of the Companies 
Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division I, II and III of 
Schedule III and are applicable from April 1, 2021. Key 
amendments relating to Division II which relate to companies 
whose financial statements are required to comply with 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are: 

Balance Sheet: 

• Lease liabilities should be separately disclosed under the 
head ‘financial liabilities’, duly   distinguished as current or 
non-current. 

• Certain additional disclosures in the statement of changes in 
equity such as changes in equity share capital due to prior 
period errors and restated balances at the beginning of the 
current reporting period. 

• Specified format for disclosure of shareholding of promoters. 
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Note 3 Investments 
         Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

   (A) Investment in Others - Quoted* 
 Bank of Baroda 
 1640 Equity shares FV Rs. 2 each  121,524  87,822 

 Total   121,524  87,822     

Note 4 Other financial Assets
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

  Non Current 
  Deposit with CESC  3,258,363  3,258,363 

 Total  3,258,363  3,258,363 
 Current 
 Security Deposits  281,500  265,000 

 Total  281,500  265,000  

Note 5 Deferred tax Liability (net)
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 Deferred Tax Assets:
Timing difference on account of:
Defined benefit obligations                       6,506,539                    26,869,889
Deferred Tax Assets (A)                        6,506,539                    26,869,889
Less : Deferred Tax Liabilities   
Timing difference on account of:   
Property, plant and equipment                     (22,052,190)                (22,719,938)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (B)                     (22,052,190)                (22,719,938)
Deferred Tax Asset (Net)                     (15,545,651)                    4,149,951

Note 6 : Inventories (valued  at lower of cost and net realizable value)*
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

 "Raw Materials"  9,337,366  19,849,881 
Finished goods  34,316,891  27,717,480 
Stores and spares  19,019,457  9,709,822 

Total  62,673,714  57,277,183 
* As taken, valued and certified by the management 

Note 7: Trade Receivables
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 Considered Good- Secured  -    -   
Considered Good- Unsecured  228,977,596  168,959,026 
Considered Good- Doubtful  -    -   
Less : Provision for Doubtful Debts  -    -   
Unsecured, Considered Doubtfull  -    -   
Total  228,977,596  168,959,026 
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Note 8 Cash and Cash Equivalents

         Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 (a) Balances with banks

       (i) In Current Account  20,679,162  5,925,129 

(b) Cash in hand  4,079,093  4,757,295 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents  24,758,255  10,682,424     

Note 9 Other Bank Balances

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

  Earmarked Balances

      -Margin Money  15,104,105  17,009,330 

Other Deposit Account  47,651,893  45,078,748 

      -Deposit accounts with maturuty beyond three months upto twelve months

Total  62,755,998  62,088,078 

Note 10 Loans

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

   Non Current 

 Loan to Others  -   

 Total  -    -   

 Current 

 Loan To Others  4,647,341 

 Loan to Related Party  556,900 

 Total  5,204,241  -     

 * This represents the interest portion of books subsiquently by subsidiaries 

Note-11 Current Tax Assets

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

  Non Current 

 Advance tax including TDS & MAT Credit  13,006,769  7,561,864 

 Total  13,006,769  7,561,864 

Note 12 Other Current Assets

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

  (i) Advances other than Capital Advances 

  Other Receivables  8,402,392  11,594,780 

 8,402,392  11,594,780 

 (ii) Others 

Prepaid Expenses  -    -   

CENVAT/ Service Tax/ Sales Tax recoverable  9,711,364  8,719,507 

GST Input (net of Output)  2,354,252  805,686 

Advance to Suppliers  -    -   

 12,065,616  9,525,193 

 Total  20,468,008  21,119,973  
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Note 13 : Share Capital

 

As at March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

 

 Number  Amount(`)   Number Amount(`) 

Authorised

Equity shares of Rs.10 each  33,750,000  337,500,000  33,750,000  337,500,000 

 337,500,000  337,500,000 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up

 Equity shares of Rs.10 each  8,000,000  80,000,000  8,000,000  80,000,000 

 80,000,000  80,000,000 

Details of the Shareholders holding more than 5% of Equity Shares of the Company

Name of Shareholder As at March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

 No. of % of  No. of % of
Shares held   Holding  Shares held   Holding  

SUSHILA DEVI MUNDHRA  1,031,175  12.89  1,031,175  12.89 

SURAJ RATAN MUNDHRA  791,627  9.90  791,627  9.90 

SURAJ RATAN MUNDHRA HUF  670,005  8.38  670,005  8.38 

ARC HOLDINGS LTD  1,223,380  15.29  1,223,380  15.29 

MUKESH MUNDHRA  700,759  8.76  700,759  8.76 

* No Shares were either issued otherwise than for payment being received in cash or brought back or alloted

as fully paid up bonus shares in the preceeding five years from the date of this balance sheet

Reconcilation of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year and at the end of the reporting period

EQUITY SHARES

As at March 31, 2021 As at  March 31, 2020

 Number  Amount(`)   Number Amount(`) 

At the beginning of the period  8,000,000  80,000,000  8,000,000  80,000,000 

Issued during the period  -    -    -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the period  8,000,000  80,000,000  8,000,000  80,000,000 

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares both Equity Shares & Preference Shares  

Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per 
share held and rank pari passu. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing 
Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. 

Note 14. Other equity

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

General Reserve  -    -   

Capital Reserve  3,380  3,380 

Securities Premium Reserve  112,250,000  112,250,000 

Retained earnings  134,357,215  54,000,796 

Other comprehensive income  (4,916,975)  (2,838,014) 

Total  241,693,620  163,416,162 
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Note 15 Borrowings

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Non -  Current

Secured

Vehicle loan from Bank (Hypothecation of Vehicle) (1)  6,100,268  10,796,950 

 6,100,268  10,796,950 

Unsecured

Loan from Body Coporate  572,297  32,438,347 

Loan from Others  10,129,612  11,001,288 

Loan from Other Bank

(i) Yes Bank  1,635,368  1,218,626 

(ii) ICICI Bank  2,168,742  1,921,219 

 14,506,018  46,579,480 

Total  20,606,287  57,376,430 

Current

Secured

Other loans from banks

Fund Based - Cash Credit (2)

(i) Bank of Baroda  46,874,028  39,482,522 

(ii) Central Bank of India (CBI)  5,314,400  3,510,698 

Unsecured

Loan from NBFC  5,257,239  11,216,510 

Loan from Other Bank

(i) Yes Bank  4,008,816  1,641,018 

(ii) ICICI Bank  1,317,701  1,648,057 

(iii) Central Bank of India  785,000  -   

Total  63,557,183  57,498,805   

(1)EMI amounting to Rs 20621/-per installment per Truck Body of 4 Truck Body payble in 53 instlments of which 31 installments has been paid. 
(1)EMI amounting to Rs 62504/-per installment per Truck of 4 Truck payble in 65 instlments of which 34 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 30958/-per installment of Car payble in 53 instlments of which 47 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 37833/-per installment of Car payble in 40 instlments of which 21 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 59473/-per installment of Car payble in 65 instlments of which 42 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 18731/-per installment of Car payble in 60 instlments of which 13 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 9619/-per installment of Car payble in 60 instlments of which 12 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 34300/-per installment of Truck Re-Finance payble in 36 instlments of which 21 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 29580/-per installment of Truck Re-Finance payble in 36 instlments of which 21 installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 26820/-per installment of Truck Re-Finance payble in 36 instlments of which 21  installments has been paid. 
(1) EMI amounting to Rs 27440/-per installment of Truck Re-Finance payble in 36 instlments of which 17 installments has been paid. 

(2) Secured by Hypothication of Raw Material , Work in Progress, Finished Goods, Consumable Spares, Book Debts, Common Collateral 
immovable property, Plant & Machinery at Rampur (Budge Budge), Personal Gurantee of Ajay Kurmar Mimani, Mukesh Mundhra, Vijay Mimani, 
Suraj Ratan Mundhra. Exclusive charges on FD of Rs 4.75Cr. along with accrude interest thereon.
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Note 16 Other Financial Liabilities
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Non - Current
Advance against Development  30,000,000  34,000,000 
Lease Liability  1,343,659  -   

 31,343,659  34,000,000 
Current
Lease Liability  815,916  -   
Sundry liabilities for expense  12,476,538   13,858,223 
Curent Maturity of Long term Debt  7,880,410  5,686,918 
 21,172,864   19,545,141  
Total  52,516,523   53,545,141  

Note 17 Provisions
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Non - Current
  Provision for Employee Benefits
(a) Provision for Leave Encashment  2,676,082  2,159,978 
(b) Provision for Gratuity  18,429,086  15,407,641 
Total  21,105,168  17,567,619 

Current
(a) Provision for Employee Benefits  4,116,148  2,951,555 
(b) Provision for Gratuity  1,978,011  1,741,105 
(c)  Provision for Leave Encashment  304,812  226,396 
Total  6,398,971  4,919,056  

Note 18 Trade Payables
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Outstanding dues to Micro and Small enterprises  342,200  601,346 
Outstanding dues to parties other than  Micro and Small enterprises  107,270,505  108,241,624 

 *Details of dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises as defined under Micro, Small & 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSME Act) are based on information made 
available to the Company. 
Total  107,612,705  108,842,970 

Disclouser under MSMED act.
a. the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at
the end of accounting year  342,200  601,346 
b. Interest paid by the buyer under MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made
to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year 0 0
c. Interest due and payable for the period (where the principal has been paid but interest under the
MSMED Act, 2006 not paid) 0 0
d. The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year 12263 0
e. Interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as
above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23. 0 0

Note 19 Other Current liabilities
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Statutory Liabilities  5,372,636  2,400,074 
Advance from Customer  11,436,167  -   
Total  16,808,803  2,400,074 
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Note - 20:  Revenue from Operations

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Sale of products (including excise duty)

Domestic Sales  555,666,489  413,334,379 

Export Sales  310,028,255  282,177,268 

 865,694,744  695,511,647 

Other Operating revenues

Duty Drawback  421,721  975,362 

Export Incentive  596,752  11,366,023 

 1,018,473  12,341,385 

Total revenue from continuing operations  866,713,217  707,853,032 

Note 21 : Other Income
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Interest Income 
Bank Interest Received  3,442,125  4,775,980 
Dividend Income  221,709  -   

 3,663,834  4,775,980 
Other non-operating income 
Others  20,472,267  6,490,319 

 20,472,267  6,490,319 
Other Income  24,136,101  11,266,299 

Note -22: Cost of Raw Materials & Component Consumed
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Inventory at the beginning of the year  19,849,881  7,137,750 
Add:- Purchases  564,934,004  478,393,898 

 584,783,885  485,531,648 

Less:- Inventory at the end of year  9,337,366  19,849,881 

Cost of Raw Materials Consumed  575,446,519  465,681,767 

Note -23 : (Increase)/Decrease in Inventory
 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Inventories at the end of the Year
Finished goods  34,316,891  27,717,480 

 34,316,891  27,717,480 
Inventories at the begining of the Year
Finished goods  27,717,480  29,674,700 

 27,717,480  29,674,700 

(Increase)/Decrease In Inventory  -6,599,411  1,957,220 
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Note -24 : Employee Benefit Expenses

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

(a)  Salaries, Wages and Incentives  56,961,846  51,350,613 

(b)  Contribution to Provident and Other funds  5,295,144  5,431,793 

(c)  Staff Welfare Expenses   3,560,331  3,584,557 

Total  65,817,321  60,366,963 

Note- 25 : Finance Cost

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Interest Expense  12,584,865  21,618,786 

Other Borrowing Cost  6,501,773  8,749,418 

Total  19,086,637  30,368,204 

Note- 26 : Other Expenses

 Amount in ` 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Rent  528,904  2,135,866 

Carriage Outward  16,345,914  10,375,741 

Research & Development  988,363  1,477,303 

Discount Allowed  -    27,004 

Travelling & Conveyance  4,601,513  13,362,619 

Repairs & Maintenance

     - Machinery  11,747,119  5,014,837 

Telephone & Postage Expenses  865,637  1,040,129 

Insurance Expenses  853,401  938,418 

Filing fees, Rates & Taxes  5,673,445  12,612,332 

Payment to Auditors  -   

    - Statutory Audit Fees  360,000  375,000 

     - Tax Audit Fees  25,000  25,000 

     - Other Matter  7,000  -   

Legal & Consultancy Charges  5,257,381  6,244,042 

Subscription & Donation  3,478,440  2,919,903 

Miscelleneous Expenses  18,660,594  12,610,698 

Export Expenses  30,289,191  24,356,724 

Import Expenses  1,446,958  1,109,073 

Loading & Unloading Expenses  4,341,179  7,518,541 

Write Off  4,514,254  11,053,136 

Total  109,984,293  113,196,366 
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27. Earnings per Share  Amount in ` 

2020-21 2019-20

a) Net profit attributable to the shareholders (PAT)             80,356,419        25,241,921 

b) Weighted average no. of equity share of face value of ` 10/- each 8,000,000 8,000,000

 Basic earnings per share 10.04 3.16

c) Weighted average potential no. of equity shares 8,000,000 8,000,000

 Diluted earnings per share 10.04 3.16

28. Income tax Reconciliation  Amount in `

Reconciliation of Accounting profit and tax expense 2020-21 2019-20

Profit before tax 112,259,228 33,295,444

Tax at the Indian tax rate of 27.82% (previous year - 27.82%) 30,639,315 9,262,793

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income

- Companies Act Depreciation 4,132,586 3,965,287

Tax effect of amounts which are deductible (non-taxable) in calculating taxable income

- Income Tax Act Depreciation 3,358,652 3,853,378

Tax effect of other adjustments 587,743 844,114

Impact of Unabsorbed Depreciation 18,618,300 0

MAT Impact 5,280,207 3,997,705

Income Tax Recognized in Profit & Loss account (MAT) 17,487,414 4,532,882

29. Related Party Transactions

Disclosure of related party transactions in terms of Ind AS 24 is given below. 

(i) Key Managerial Personnel

(a) Name of the related parties with relationship:

i) Mr. Suraj Ratan Mundhra, Director

ii) Mr. Mukesh Mundhra, Director

iii) Mr. Ajay Kumar Mimani, Director 

iv) Mr. Rajesh Mundhra – Director

v) Mr. Navneet Bagri - CFO

vi) Mrs. Sonali Khanna Chaubey- Company Secretary

(b) Transactions with the related parties during the year:  Amount in `

Remuneration Loans & Advances given)

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Key Management Personnel 7,588,527 7,588,527 Nil Nil

Relative of KMP Nil Nil Nil Nil

Closing Balance 617,191 617,191 Nil Nil

30. Employee Benefits:

a) Present Value of Obligations for Defined Benefits  Amount in `

Leave Leave Gratuity Gratuity
Encashment  Encashment  (Funded)  (Funded)

2020-2021 2019-2020 2020-2021 2019-2020

` ` ` `

As at the beginning of the year 2,386,374 1,804,663 17,148,746 13,428,945
Current Service Cost 294,430 146,726 1,034,244 839,502
Interest Cost 167,046 126,326 1,200,412 940,026
Actuarial (Gains)/Losses 228,947 386,775 1,883,716 2,770,588
Benefits paid (95,903) (78,116) (860,021) (830,315)
As at the end of year 2,980,894 2,386,374 20,407,097 17,148,746
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b) Fair Value of Planned Assets:

Leave Leave Gratuity Gratuity
Encashment  Encashment  (Funded)  (Funded)

2020-2021 2018-2019 2020-2021 2019-2020

` ` ` `

As at the beginning of the year 0 0 0 0

Expected return on plan assets                      -                        -                      -         -   

Contribution by Employer             95,903             78,116         860,021    830,315 

(Benefits Paid)            (95,903)            (78,116)       (860,021)      (830,315) 

As at the end of the year                      -                        -                      -                    -   

c)  Reconciliation of Present Value of defined benefits Obligation in “a” above and fair value of Plan assets in above

Leave Leave Gratuity Gratuity
Encashment  Encashment  (Funded)  (Funded)

2020-2021 2018-2019 2020-2021 2019-2020

` ` ` `

Present Value of Obligation at the end of the year        2,980,894        2,386,374 20,407,097 17,148,746 

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year                      -                        -    -  -   

Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet        2,980,894        2,386,374 20,407,097      17,148,746 

d) Actuarial Assumptions

Discount rate per annum compound 7.00% 7.00%

Rate of increase in salaries 5.00% 5.00%

Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14

Notes

(a) The Estimate of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and 

     other relevant factors such as supply and demand in employment market. 

(b) Discount rate is based upon the market yields available on Government Bonds at the accounting date with that of liabilities.

e) Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the define benefit obligation are discount rate, Salary escalation rate and withdrawal 
rate. The sensitivity analysis below has determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the 
reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The change in the present value of Defined Benefit Obligation for a change of 100 
Basis Points from the assumed assumption is given below.

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

(Leave Encashment) (Gratuity)

Particulars Decrease Increase Decrease Increase

Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)      2,980,894 20407097

Discount rate (-/+ 1%) 3,184,874 2,799,902 21,582,653 19,337,660

% change compared to base due to sensitivity 7% 6% 6% 5%

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 1%) 2,795,001 3,186,910 19,308,419 21,594,151

% change compared to base due to sensitivity 6% 7% 5% 6%

Withdrawal Rates (- / + 50%) 2,954,853 3,004,309 20,300,282 20,505,167

% change compared to base due to sensitivity 1% 1% 0% 1%

31.The Company has not received full information from vendors regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 (MSMED ACT); hence disclosure relating to amount unpaid at year end together with interest paid/payable have been given based 
on the information so far available with the Company / identified by the Company management.
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32. Expenditure in Foreign Currency:  Amount in ̀

2020-2021 2019-2020

Travelling NIL 808,063

Commission NIL NIL

Business Development Expenses 5,78,598 NIL

33. Earnings in Foreign Currency  Amount in ̀

2020-2021 2019-2020

Value of Exports on FOB basis 310,028,255 228,405,613

Brokerage and Commission received NIL NIL

34. CIF Value of imports  Amount in `

2020-2021 2019-2020

Raw Materials 283,57,838 50,786,948

35. Contingent Liabilities 36. Capital Management

a)   Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt (In lakhs): The Company's objective when managing capital (defined as net 
debt and equity) are to safeguard the Company's ability to • Demand under Central Excise act, 1944 and Finance act, 1944 
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to for the period from 2003-04, against which appeal was filed 
shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders, while protecting before Commissioner appeal- Rs. 17.68 lakhs
and strengthening the balance sheet through the appropriate 

• The case of excise pending in Tribunal involving an amount of Rs. balance of debt and equity funding. The Company manages its 
396.34 lakhs against which Rs. 74.34 lakhs paid towards security capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes to 
deposit. economic conditions and strategic objectives of the Company. The 

Company's capital management, amongst other things, aims to • Cases of sales tax amounting to Rs. 115.42 lakhs are pending 
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-before Deputy Commissioner of Commercial Tax and Rs. 137.04 
bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure lakhs from 2005-06 before Joint Commissioner of sales tax.
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would 

• In Income tax, an appeal has been filed by the department against permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There 
relief granted by the income tax Appellate Tribunal which is have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-
pending in High Court, Calcutta-Rs. 640.78 lakhs for 1988-98. bearing loans and borrowing in the current period. 
And Rs 316.97 lakhs case is pending before Commissioner 

37. The charge of dues of IDBI Bank now taken over by Stressed (Appeal) for the period.
Assets Stabilization Fund (SASF) and WBIDCL has not yet been 

• The position of both the units (Hid Road & Budge Budge) has filed in connection with the satisfaction of charge on ROC portal, 
been handed over back to KOPT along with the stocks which are despite full and final payment made as per the scheme approved 
having recoverable value more than the rent payable, Since the by the Hon’ble Calcutta High Court. 
matter is subjudice we have ignored the value of recoverable from 

Since SASF has failed to issue NOC as stipulated in the scheme, the company has provided for rent payable.
the company has filed a petition before the Hon’ble Calcutta High 

• On Account of LC and Bank Guarantee Rs 7,81,55,242/- and Court on the ground of breach of terms and conditions of the 
45,00,000/- respectively. scheme. The matter is pending before Hon’ble Calcutta High 

b) Capital and other commitments:  Rs. Nil (Previous Year - Rs. Nil) Court. The matter for NOC with WBIDCL is being followed.

38. Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:  Amount in ̀

Particulars 2020-2021 2019-2020 

Debt 92,043,880 120,562,153

Cash and Bank balance 24,758,255 10,682,424

Net Debt 67,285,625 109,879,729

Total Equity 321,693,620 243,416,162

Net debt to Equity ratio/ Gearing Ratio               0.209                     0.451 
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Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management 

Credit Risk Cash and cash equivalents, Ageing analysis, Credit limits and analysis of 

trade receivables, financial assets Credit analysis credit-worthiness

measured at amortised cost.  

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other liabilities. Cash Flow forecasts Timely evaluation of Credit 
facilities and regularly payment 
interest liabilities

Market Risk – foreign exchange Recognised financial assets Cash Flow forecasts Monitoring of currency 
and liabilities not denominated in exchange rate movement.
 INR

Market Risk – interest rate Long Term Borrowings/Liabilities ... Monitoring of interest rate 
movements

Market Risk – security prices Investment in Securities ... Portfolio Management

Financial Assets Measured at  Amortized Cost       Current   Non Current

2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 2019-20

Trade receivables          228,977,596                   168,959,026                    -                      -   

Cash and cash    equivalents            24,758,255                   10,682,424                    -                      -   

Other Bank Balances             62,755,998           62,088,078                    -                      -   

Loans               5,204,241                 -                    -                      -   

Other Financial Assets                  281,500                 265,000      3,258,363     3,258,363 

Measured at fair value through OCI

Investments   - 121,524                87,822 

Total Financial Assets           321,977,591                   241,994,528 3,379,887                  3,346,185 

Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost

Borrowings              63,557,183                     57,498,805                 20,606,287  57,376,430 

Trade payables           107,785,305                   108,842,970   - 

Other financial liabilities              21,172,864                     19,545,141                 31,343,659     34,000,000 

Total Financial Liabilities           192,515,353                   185,886,916                 51,949,946        91,376,430 

40.Balance confirmations are awaited in few cases in respect of trade procedures, which are reviewed by the Audit Committee and 
receivable and trade payables. In the opinion of the management it is approved by the Board from time to time. These procedures are 
unlikely that there will be any major reconciliation difference with reviewed to ensure that executive management controls risks by way 
material impact on the carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities of properly defined framework. The Company does not enter into 
as reflected in these financial statements. derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. The 

following table explains the sources of risk and how the entity 41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
manages the risk in its financial statements. The management 

The Company’s business activities are exposed to a variety of risks reviews the status of all principal risks with a significant potential 
including liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. The Company impact. Additionally, the Audit Committee carried out focused risk 
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects of these risks by reviews of its Plant and divisions. These reviews included an analysis 
managing them through a structured process of identification, of both the principal risks, and the controls, monitoring and assurance 
assessment and prioritization of risks followed by coordinated efforts processes established to mitigate those risks to acceptable levels. As 
to monitor, minimize and mitigate the impact of such risks on its a result of these reviews, a number of actions were identified to 
financial performance and capital. For this purpose, the Company continue to improve internal controls and the management of risk.
has laid comprehensive risk assessment and minimization/mitigation 

39. Disclosure on Financial Instruments (a) Financial assets and liabilities

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial The following table presents the carrying value and fair value of each 
instruments for the Company and provides additional information on category of financial assets and liabilities as at March 31, 2021 and 
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments. March 31, 2020

 Amount in `
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a. Credit Risk To manage the price risk arising from investments, the company 
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of portfolio is done in 

Credit Risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations 
accordance with the directions of the Board.

under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to 
financial loss. The company is exposed to credit risk from its 42. During this year company incurred Rs 97,008/- for the 
operating activities (primarily trade receivables and deposits to purchase of Research and Development equipment in Fixed 
landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with Assets. And incurred expenses disclose in Note 26 of Rs 
banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions 9,88,363/-.
and other financial instruments. The company generally doesn’t 

43.Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic 
have collateral.

on COVID-19
Customer credit Risk is managed by business through the 

The vigorous spread of COVID - 19 pandemic including the more 
company’s established policy, procedures and controls relating to 

lethal second wave continues to affect the businesses across 
customer credit risk management. Credit quality of each customer 

India and the operations of the Company. Despite intermittent 
is assessed, and credit limits are defined in accordance with this 

disruptions during the year in regular operations of the Company 
assessment. Outstanding customer receivables and security 

due to COVID - 19 pandemic, requiring lockdown, restrictive 
deposits are regularly monitored.

measures & other emergency measures, resulting in frequent 
The ageing of Trade receivables i.e., receivables which are post interruption of working, the Company has been able to perform 
due (net of allowances / provisions) are given below: reasonably during the year ended 31st March 2021.

Besides above, the 'Amphan' cyclone in the month of May, in the  Amount in `
state of West Bengal affected the operations of the plants of the 

Age of receivables 2020-21 2019-20 Company, which also impacted the performance during the year.  
The actual impact of COVID-19’s impact would be recognized Less than six months 163,771,515 117,682,765
prospectively at a later date through monitoring the prevalent 

More than six months 65,206,081 51,276,261 future economic conditions its impact.

44.Consolidation Information

The company objective is to at all times maintain optimum level of ü Subsidiary Companies
liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirement at all times. 

(a) Ownership Interest in SubsidiariesThe current committed lines of credit are sufficient to meet its short 
to medium term expansion needs and hence evaluate the Ownership Interest 31.03.2020 31.03.2019
concentration of risk with respect to liquidity as low. The Company 

Allied Maritime & Infra Engineering monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity requirements to ensure it 
Private Ltd 100% 100%has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining 

headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all 
ARCL Petrochemicals Limited 100% 100%

times so that Company does not breach borrowing limits or 
covenants (where applicable) on any of its borrowing facilities. Ocilim Advisory Services Private Ltd. 100% 100%

The company primarily depends on own funds and has low level of Wide Range Merchants Private Ltd. 100% 100%
borrowing.

Nocnex Chemicals Private Ltd. 100% 100%
c. Market Risk

Yocnex Chemicals Private Ltd. 100% 100%
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flow of 

Suksess Chemicals Private Ltd. 100% 100%financial instruments may fluctuate because of changes in market 
conditions. Market risk broadly comprises three types of risks 
namely currency risk, interest rate risk, and price risk (for 
commodities or equity instruments).

(i) Foreign Exchange Risk - The company operates only in India and 
has not entered into any foreign exchange or commodity 
derivative contracts. Accordingly, there in no significant exposure 
to market risk.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk –As majority of the financial assets and 
liabilities of the Company are fixed interest-bearing instruments, 
the Company’s net exposure to interest risk is negligible. 

(iii) Security Price Risk –. The company’s exposure to securities price 
risk arises from investments held by the company and classified in 
the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or fair value 
through Profit or Loss. 
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b. Additional Disclosure

Additional Disclosure required in accordance with Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

Net Asset i.e. Share in Share in Share in total 
Total assets minus profit or loss other comprehensive comprehensive

total liablities income  income 

Name of Entity in the Group As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount As % of Amount
consolidated consolidated consolidated total

net assets profit or other comprehen-
loss comprehen- sive income

sive income

Parent

        

ARCL ORGANICS LTD 97.91 314,979,195 90.97 73,103,227 100 2,078,961 91 71,024,266

Subsidiary         

Allied Maritime & Infra Engineering
Private Ltd 0.01 40,889 -0.08 -63,410 - - -0.08 -63,410

ARCL Petrochemicals Limited -0.01 -26,205 0.08 65,676 - - 0.08 65,676

Ocilim Advisory Services Private Ltd. -0.06 -191,828 -0.09 -69,455 - - -0.09 -69,455

Wide Range Merchants Private Ltd. -0.09 -298,876 -0.09 -70,054 - - -0.09 -70,054

Nocnex Chemicals Private Ltd. -0.04 -140,326 -0.09 -73,583 - - -0.09 -73,583

Yocnex Chemicals Private Ltd. -0.04 -135,096 -0.09 -68,480 - - -0.09 -68,480

Suksess Chemicals Private Ltd. 2.32 7,465,867 9.37 7,532,498 - - 9.62 7,532,498

Total 100 321,693,620 100 80,356,419 100 2,078,961 100 78,277,458

45. Previous year’s figures (given in parenthesis in some cases) has been arranged / regrouped wherever considered necessary.
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